
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422523

E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 21 March 2017

Website: http://www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 29 MARCH 2017 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Members of the Committee:
Felix Bloomfield (Chairman)
Joan Bland
Margaret Davies
Anthony Dearlove
Jeannette Matelot

Toby Newman (Vice-
Chairman)
David Nimmo-Smith
Richard Pullen
David Turner

Margaret Turner
Ian White

Substitutes
Charles Bailey
Stefan Gawrysiak

Stephen Harrod
Lorraine Hillier
Elaine Hornsby

Imran Lokhon
Sue Lawson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 20)

To adopt and sign as correct records the minutes of the committee meetings held 
on 1 and 13 March 2017.

3 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matter urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.

5 Applications deferred or withdrawn  

6 Proposals for site visit reports  

7 Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public who have registered to 
speak on planning applications which are being presented to this committee 
meeting.

Development control applications

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information

All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number. 

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



3

Site Address Proposal Application No Page

8 Land to the 
East of Benson 
Lane, 
Crowmarsh 
Gifford, OX10 
8ED  

Outline planning application for up to 
150 dwellings together with 
associated access, public open 
space, landscaping and amenity 
areas.

P16/S3608/O 21 - 42

9 Shakespeare 
House, Clapcot 
Way, 
Wallingford, 
OX10 8HS  

Demolition of the existing building, 
erection of ten dwellings, new access, 
parking and landscaping.

P16/S3709/FUL 43 - 58

10 Land to the 
south of A4130, 
Didcot  

Outline planning permission for up to 
166 dwellings, associated open space 
and infrastructure.

P16/S3609/O 59 - 74

11 Land to the 
west of 
Ridgeways, 
New Road, 
Lower Shiplake, 
RG9 3LA  

Development of 4 residential units, all 
matters reserved except access.

P16/S3778/O 75 - 84

12 Land at 67 
Lower Icknield 
Way, Chinnor, 
OX39 4EA  

This application has been deferred 
from consideration at planning 
committee on 29 March 2017 to 
allow for a site visit.

P16/S3471/FUL 85 - 100

13 Leys Stable 
Cottage, Old 
Bix Road, RG9 
6BY  

Variation of condition 2 and 5 of 
planning permission P14/S4069/FUL 
to replace approved plans and for the 
insertion of a clear glazed first floor 
window in the north and south 
elevations.

P16/S3555/FUL 101 - 
112

14 Land north of 
Clayhill Wood, 
Stoke Row  

1. Application for change of use of 
agricultural land to equestrian use. 

2. Application to replace the existing 
stables and storage building with 
two permanent buildings: i) 
American barn for stabling horses; 
ii) Secure storage barn for hay, 
bedding and agricultural 
machinery.

P17/S0201/FUL 113 - 
124



4



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD AT 6.00 PM ON WEDNESDAY 1 MARCH 2017

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Present:

Felix Bloomfield (Chairman)

Joan Bland, Margaret Davies, Anthony Dearlove, Elaine Hornsby, Jeannette Matelot, 
Toby Newman, David Nimmo-Smith, David Turner, Margaret Turner and Ian White

Apologies:

Richard Pullen tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Emma Bowerman, Paula Fox, Paul Lucas, Nicola Meurer, Phil Moule and Davina 
Sarac

Also present: 

Paul Harrison

194 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest 

None.

195 Minutes of the previous meetings 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meetings held on 1 and 13 February 2017 
as correct records and agree that the Chairman sign these as such.

196 Urgent business and Chairman's announcements 

None.

197 Applications deferred or withdrawn 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2

Applications P16/S0784/FUL and P16/S2314/FUL – 9 and 8 Kiln Lane, Garsington 
respectively had been deferred to allow for a site visit, the timing of which has yet to 
be confirmed.

198 Proposals for site visits 

None.

199 P16/S2359/FUL and P16/S2360/LB - Hunts Farm, Harpsden 
Bottom, Harpsden 

The committee considered applications P16/S2359/FUL and P16/S2360/LB to 
refurbish and extend the existing farmhouse and to convert two outbuildings and yard 
to residential use, including amenity garden space and off-street parking at Hunts 
Farm, Harpsden Bottom, Harpsden.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: Following a site visit, it was recommended that an extra condition be 
included as follows: the fold yard as identified on drawing number 1.20 rev F shall be 
solely used for the parking of vehicles and for no other purpose including any 
residential buildings or chattels unless the prior written permission of the Local 
Planning Authority has been sought and granted.

Kester George, a representative of Harpsden parish council, spoke objecting to the 
application. His concerns included the following:

 The parish council has no objection to the conversion of the barn or dairy, but 
has serious objections to them being for residential use;

 It would constitute overdevelopment on a rural site in the AONB;
 Concerns for traffic site due to the barn jutting out into the road; and
 Concerns for the effect on the historic setting.

Rhian Woods, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application:
 The objections have been addressed in the latest application;
 The conservation officer finds the proposal acceptable; and
 The application has been carefully and sensitively designed and will be an 

important contribution to the AONB.

Paul Harrison, one of the local ward councillors, requested that the views of the 
Henley Archaeological and Historical Groups views are taken into account.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. Their discussion centred on the need to protect the buildings for the 
future and that by converting them to residential use would ensure this.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application for planning permission 
with an extra condition relating to the fold yard, was declared carried on being put to 
the vote.

Page 6



3

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S2359/FUL, subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to commencement of development.
4. Boundary walls and fences to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.
5. Surface of car parking area/fold yard to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.
6. Development to be carried out in accordance with biodiversity mitigation 

measures.
7. New vehicular access to be formed in accordance with highway authority’s 

specifications.
8. Existing vehicular access to be improved in accordance with the highway 

authority’s specifications.
9. Parking and manoeuvring areas to be provided in accordance with the 

approved plans.
10.Archaeological investigation to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.
11.Archaeological evaluation to be carried out.
12.The fold yard as identified on drawing number 1.20 rev F shall be solely used 

for the parking of vehicles and for no other purpose including any residential 
buildings or chattels unless the prior written permission of the Local Planning 
Authority has been sought and granted.

A motion, moved and seconded, to grant listed building consent, was declared 
carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant listed building consent for application P16/S2360/LB subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement of works within three years.
2. Works to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to commencement of works.
4. Joinery details to be agreed prior to commencement of works.
5. Method statement for repairs to be agreed.

200 P16/S3142/O - Land off Kennylands Road, Sonning Common 

The committee considered application P16/S3142/O for outline planning permission 
to erect up to 95 dwellings, including affordable housing; new public open space, 
landscaping; surface water attenuation; access; services, utilities and associated 
works on land off Kennylands Road, Sonning Common.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: The Chilterns Conservation Board has submitted its objection to the 
proposal due to the harm to the setting of the AONB. The council’s landscape officer 
has not amended their response. 29 further letters of objection have been received.

Page 7



4

Tom Fort, a representative of Sonning Common parish council, spoke objecting to 
the application. His concerns included the following:

 If approved, the application would destroy the Sonning Common 
Neighbourhood Plan, which was robustly supported by the residents of 
Sonning Common;

 In 2015, John Cotton urged villages to do a neighbourhood plan; to go against 
the Sonning Common made plan would have a terrible effect on 
neighbourhood planning across South Oxfordshire; and

 The damage done to the countryside would be irreparable; this field should not 
be looked at in isolation but in the context of the wider landscape.

Mr Pearson, a representative of Kidmore End parish council, spoke objecting to the 
application. His concerns included the following:

 A lot of work went into the Sonning Common neighbourhood plan, which is not 
yet six months old;

 The wider application site serves as an important buffer with the AONB and 
boundary with Kidmore End parish and should therefore not be removed; and

 South Oxfordshire District Council are encouraging more democratic 
involvement, therefore accepting this proposal would damage its credibility.

John Pearman, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application. His concerns 
included the following:

 Local residents are outraged by the recommendation, it is a betrayal of 
localism and a mockery of public statements made supporting neighbourhood 
plans;

 To say that SOL6 wouldn’t depart from the spatial strategy is a spurious claim;
 The neighbourhood plan has allocated 195 homes with 44 in reserve; the extra 

69 proposed is an increase for this site of 2.5 times;
 It is not a sustainable location as future residents would mostly drive to village 

centre and most likely go elsewhere; and
 The Chilterns Conservation Board has objected due to the harm to the setting 

of the AONB.

Michael Knott, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application:
 This application has been fully and appropriately judged on planning weight;
 There is limited conflict with the neighbourhood plan as the enlargement would 

not depart from the spatial strategy;
 There is a need for a pragmatic approach;
 There are no technical objections apart from the Chilterns Conservation 

Board;
 The proposed development would be of high quality in a sustainable location, 

well located to the village centre; and
 There would be an important contribution to both affordable and market 

housing, CiL payments and S106 monies to mitigate the impact.

Paul Harrison, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application. 
His concerns included the following:

 Throws the neighbourhood plan into disrepute;
 Important to mention Gavin Barwell statement, supporting neighbourhood 

plans;
 The neighbourhood plan cost £69,000 and has resulted in a 91% parish 

council tax rise;
Page 8



5

 Would discourage other parish councils from doing their own neighbourhood 
plans; and

 There are already parking issues on Wood Lane, which would be exacerbated.

In response to questions, officers reported that:
 Full weight can be applied to the ministerial statement by Gavin Barwell MP;
 The Secretary of State has received a request to consider calling in this 

application should the recommendation to grant planning permission be 
approved. Any such permission could not be issued until the Secretary of 
State has concluded his consideration of the case should he decide to call it 
in.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. They did not agree that that the proposed application would not severely 
harm the setting of the AONB, as exemplified by the Chilterns Conservation Board’s 
objections or that S106 contributions would be sufficient in mitigating the impact of 
the development; the committee also expressed full support of the Sonning Common 
neighbourhood plan and in neighbourhood plans in general.

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P16/S3142/O for the 
following reasons:

1. The application proposes a significant enlargement, in terms of the site area 
and number of dwellings proposed, over the site allocation in the Sonning 
Common Neighbourhood Plan. The proposal would extend significantly 
beyond the linear infill allocation as set out in the Neighbourhood Plan and 
result in development outside the built area of the village. The application is 
therefore contrary to Policy HS4 of the Sonning Common Neighbourhood 
Plan, Polices CS1, CSR1, CSEN1 and CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire Core 
Strategy, Polices C4,G2 and G4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 and 
in particular but not confined to paragraphs 14 and 198 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

2. The application site area borders the Chilterns AONB and includes open 
farmland which contributes to the character and appearance of the area and 
the enjoyment of a nearby right of way.  The proposed development would 
diminish the role of the site in protecting and enhancing a distinctive and 
valued landscape which contributes to the identity of Sonning Common. It 
would therefore result in the loss of the distinctive landscape boundaries of the 
existing settlement and harm the valued landscape setting of the AONB and 
the wider dip slope landscape character of the area. As such the application is 
contrary to Policy CSEN1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, Policies G2, 
G4, C4 and D1 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011, Policy ENV2 of the 
Sonning Common Neighbourhood Plan and in particular but not confined to 
paragraphs 7,14,109 and 115 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. In the absence of a completed S106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to 
secure affordable housing to meet the needs of the district. As such, the 
development would be contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, 

Page 9



6

Policy CSH3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and the objectives of the 
Sonning Common Neighbourhood Plan.       

4. In the absence of a completed S106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to 
secure infrastructure necessary to meet the needs of the development. As 
such, the development would be contrary to the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Policies CSI1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, Policies T1, 
R2 and R6 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

201 P16/S3284/O - Land south of Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor 

Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
did not take part in the debate or voting for this item.

The committee considered application P16/S3284/O for outline planning permission 
to erect up to 140 dwellings; new public open space; associated landscaping; and 
site infrastructure on land South of Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: Thames Water have re-issued its consultation response taking into 
account the relevant reports.   They have confirmed that there is sufficient water 
supply capacity to meet the demand for the new homes.  It is therefore 
recommended that condition 12 to be changed to a compliance condition.

Robin Williams and Susan Ashdown, representatives of Chinnor parish council, 
spoke objecting to the application. Their concerns included the following:

 They have serious concerns with highway safety, most especially heavy goods 
traffic as the road network is not designed for this;

 There would be 280 vehicle movements in and out of the development at peak 
times, not including trade vehicles;

 The significant increase of traffic on the B4009 would increase the risk of 
accidents;

 The developer have worked closely with the parish council, who have 
confidence that remaining concerns can be resolved; and

 Request a route through this and the two adjoining developments is secured.

Maxine Pickard, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application. 

Craige Burden, the applicant, spoke in support of the application:
 Environmental Health have raised concerns on air quality with the close 

proximity of the railway; further investigations can be carried out and similar 
mitigations proposed by the neighbouring developments could be conditioned;

 The applicant has been unable to negotiate a route through with the 
neighbouring developments to improve the access arrangements; these 
discussions are still ongoing; and

 The access to Greenwood Avenue would be stopped up if an adopted 
unfettered route connecting the sites comes forward as part of the s106 
agreement.

Page 10



7

Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application. His 
concerns included the following:

 The inspector for both neighbouring site appeals concluded that in both cases, 
the harm would be mitigated by the field (the subject of this application); and

 Concern for the considerable increase in traffic.

In response, the officer stated that in relation to the inspector’s comments, the 
approved applications now create a landlocked field by development on all sides. It 
therefore needs to be viewed now in this context.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. They did not feel that they could make a fair assessment of the 
application without a site visit. Committee also requested the applicant continue 
discussions with adjoining landowners about the access arrangements.

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer consideration of the application to allow for 
a site visit, was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to defer consideration of application P16/S3284/O, to allow for a site 
visit.

202 P16/S3285/FUL - 17 and 19 Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor 

As part of discussions concerning application P16/S3284/O, committee concluded 
that application P16/S3285/FUL, to demolish two dwellings and construct a new 
access road at 17 and 19 Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor is intrinsically linked with the 
former application and would therefore also be deferred for a site visit.

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the application to allow for a site visit, was 
declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to defer consideration of application P16/S3285/FUL, to allow for a site 
visit.

203 P16/S3399/O - Land to the south of Foxhill Close, Playhatch 

The committee considered application P16/S3399/O for outline planning permission 
for up to four dwellings with all matters except for access reserved on land to the 
South of Foxhill Close, Playhatch.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: an email had been circulated to the committee from Eye and Dunsden 
parish council, reiterating their objections as stated in the report. The parish council 
also raised concerns about the layout; the officer reminded committee that this 
application is outline at this stage and layout will be considered at the reserved 
matters stage.

Lillian Duffield, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Paul Harrison, one of the local ward councillors, spoke to the application.
Page 11



8

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant outline planning permission for application P16/S3399/O, 
subject to the following conditions:

1. Development to proceed in accordance with approved plans.
2. Commencement - outline with reserved matters.
3. Levels (details required) prior to commencement.
4. Housing mix to be agreed at reserved matters stage.
5. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to commencement.
6. New vehicular access.
7. Vision splay protection.
8. Biodiversity mitigation and enhancement strategy to be agreed prior to 

commencement.
9. Archaeology (submission and implementation of a Written Scheme of 

Investigation) prior to commencement.
10.Contamination (preliminary risk assessment) prior to commencement.
11.Surface water drainage works (details required) prior to commencement.
12.Foul drainage works (details required) prior to commencement.

204 P16/S0784/FUL - 9 Kiln Lane, Garsington 

Application P16/S0784/FUL for a mobile home/caravan pitch at 9 Kiln Lane, 
Garsington had been deferred for a site visit prior to planning committee.

205 P16/S2314/FUL - 8 Kiln Lane, Garsington 

Application P16/S2314/FUL for temporary planning permission for residency on site 
pursuant to the previous planning permission ref. P12/S0421 at 8 Kiln Lane, 
Garsington had been deferred for a site visit prior to planning committee.

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm

Chairman Date

Page 12



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD AT 6.00 PM ON MONDAY 13 MARCH 2017

FOUNTAIN CONFERENCE CENTRE, HOWBERY PARK, BENSON LANE, 
CROWMARSH GIFFORD, OX10 8BA

Present:

Felix Bloomfield (Chairman)

Joan Bland, Anthony Dearlove, Lorraine Hillier, Jeannette Matelot, Toby Newman, 
David Nimmo-Smith, David Turner and Ian White

Apologies:

Margaret Davies, Richard Pullen and Margaret Turner tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Paul Bowers, Sharon Crawford, Paula Fox, Simon Kitson and Nicola Meurer

Also present: 

Pat Dawe

206 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest 

David Nimmo Smith declared that in relation to application P17/S0279/HH – 798 St 
Andrews Road, Henley, he would be leaving the room whilst this item was debated 
as he is the applicant.

207 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None.

208 Applications deferred or withdrawn 

None.

209 Proposals for site visit reports 

None.

Public Document Pack

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



2

210 Public participation 

The list showing eight members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled 
at the meeting.

211 P16/S3611/FUL - Land North of Littleworth Road, Benson 

Felix Bloomfield stepped down from the committee and took no part in the debate or 
voting for this item.  Toby Newman acted as chairman.

The committee considered application P16/S3611/FUL to erect 187 dwellings; 
formation of vehicular access and car parking; provision of landscaping and open 
space; and other associated works on land north of Littleworth Road, Benson.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Guy Wakefield, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application:
 Although the principle of development has been established by the extant 

permission, the current scheme has changed following discussions with 
officers and the parish council;

 There are no technical objections;
 The increase in numbers as part of the detailed submission will see more 

affordable units; and
 The S106 discussions are progressing.

In response to questions from the committee, the agent confirmed the following:
 The time limit for starting on site could be reduced from three to two years; 

and
 The bungalow elements of the application had been removed following advice 

from providers of retirement housing for the over 55s that the site wasn’t 
suitable. This was agreed by the parish council.

Felix Bloomfield, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application. 
His concerns included the following:

 Despite there being no objectors present, there were still objections from local 
residents to the current proposal;

 Concern for the increased density and loss of needed retirement homes; and
 Disappointed by Oxfordshire County Council’s lack of objection on 

sustainability grounds.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application with an amended 
condition regarding commencement date, was declared carried on being put to the 
vote.

RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning to grant planning permission for 
application P16/S3611/FUL, subject to the prior variation/completion of the Section 
106 agreement and the following conditions:

Page 14



3

1. Commencement two years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Materials as on plan.
4. Noise.
5. Surface water drainage works (details required).
6. Foul drainage works (details required).
7. Archaeology.
8. New vehicular access.
9. Vision splay details.
10.New estate roads.
11.Estate accesses driveways and turning areas.
12.Parking and manoeuvring areas with plan of car parking provision.
13.Construction traffic management plan.
14.Travel plan and residential travel pack: The submitted travel plan will be 

revised in light of comments received and resubmitted for approval by the 
Local Planning Authority before first occupation of the site.

15.Travel information pack.
16.Safe routes to school study.
17.Landscaping.

Any other conditions deemed necessary after S106 negotiations.

212 P16/S4177/FUL - Bloom Buildings, West End, Cholsey 

The committee considered application P16/S4177/FUL to demolish a range of 
existing B8 storage buildings and erect five dwellings with associated parking and 
amenity space provision at Bloom Buildings, West End, Cholsey.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer updates: Oxfordshire County Council archaeological services have now 
undertaken their investigations and have no objections subject to two extra 
conditions.

Paul Jenkins, a representative of Cholsey parish council, spoke objecting to the 
application. His concerns included the following:

 The application is unsustainable, out of character and inappropriate;
 Poor access;
 The site has not been allocated in the neighbourhood plan;
 The harmful impact on the AONB;
 The North Wessex Downs AONB were not consulted;
 There is no mains drainage or gas and the water pressure is poor; and
 The harmful impact of light spill.

Samantha Wright, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application. Her concerns 
included the following:

 Impact of increased traffic on the badly maintained single track access road;
 The junction with Westfield Road is dangerous;
 Harmful impact on such a peaceful, rural area; and

Page 15



4

 Would request assurances that the drive and junction are made safe, the 
water supply is not damaged or that water pressure will not suffer and that 
there will be no secondary applications on the site following permission.

Pat Dawe, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application. 

The committee were not satisfied with the scale of impact on the AONB and 
requested a site visit.

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer consideration of the application to allow for 
a site visit was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to defer consideration of application P16/S4177/FUL to allow for a site 
visit to better understand the impact on the AONB.

213 P16/S4236/O - 14 Ilges Lane, Cholsey 

The committee considered application P16/S4236/O to demolish the existing 
bungalow and erect a pair of semi-detached dwellings and a detached dwelling with 
shared access at 14 Ilges Lane, Cholsey.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Paul Jenkins, a representative of Cholsey parish council, spoke objecting to the 
application. His concerns included the following:

 A hazardous access on a narrow lane;
 The lack of landscaping and urbanised design is out of character;
 Overlooking and privacy concerns; and
 Overdevelopment of a small plot.

Mr Gander, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application. 

John Carroll, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application:
 Semi-detached and terraced properties on modest plots are seen in this part 

of Cholsey;
 The entrance/exit used by the bungalow and the existing bank will be retained; 

and
 The proposed parking arrangements are typical of the street scene.

Pat Dawe, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application. Her 
concerns included the following:

 Overdevelopment and out of keeping with the area;
 Poor access; and
 Loss of a bungalow.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

Page 16



5

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S4236/O, subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement - outline with reserved matters.
2. Approved plans.
3. Means of access onto Ilges Lane, Cholsey is to be formed and laid out and 

constructed strictly in accordance with the local highway authority’s 
specifications.

4. Parking and manoeuvring areas to be provided and retained unobstructed at 
all times.

5. Construction traffic management to be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development.

6. No surface water drainage to highway.

214 P17/S0043/FUL - 6 Kentwood Close, Cholsey 

The committee considered application P17/S0043/FUL to erect a three-bedroom 
detached dwelling at 6 Kentwood Close, Cholsey.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Paul Jenkins, a representative of Cholsey parish council, spoke objecting to the 
application. 

Titi Dumbrofca, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application. His concerns 
included the following:

 There is already difficulty in accessing the Close due to the number of cars 
parked on the road; and

 Loss of sunlight.

Pat Dawe, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application. 

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. Although concerned for the neighbours regarding parking and access, 
without any technical objections from Highways it would be difficult to refuse.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P17/S0043/FUL, subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Schedule of materials to be submitted for approval.
4. Existing vehicular access to be improved.
5. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained unobstructed except for the parking 

of vehicles associated with the development at all times.
6. The parking/manoeuvring area shall be kept free of obstructions at all times 

and used only for the specified purpose.

Page 17



6

215 P17/S0279/HH - 78 St Andrews Road, Henley-on-Thames 

David Nimmo-Smith left the room during the consideration of this item as he is the 
applicant.

The committee considered application P17/S0279/HH for single and two storey 
extensions and general alterations at 78 St Andrews Road, Henley-on-Thames.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P17/S0279/HH, subject to 
the following conditions:

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details shown on the approved plans

3. The exterior of the development hereby permitted shall only be constructed in 
the materials specified on the plans hereby approved or in materials which 
shall previously have been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

216 P16/S3682/FUL - Land adjacent to 52 Broadwaters Avenue, 
Thame 

Jeanette Matelot stepped down from the committee and took no part in the debate or 
voting for this item.

The committee considered application P16/S3682/FUL to construct a new one-
bedroom attached dwelling house on land adjacent to 52 Broadwaters Avenue, 
Thame.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Jeanette Matelot, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application. 
Her concerns included the following:

 Overdevelopment of the site;
 Impact on neighbours’ amenity;
 Impact on the character of the area; and
 Parking, access and traffic generation.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate. 

Page 18



7

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S3682/FUL, subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement within three years of the date of this permission.
2. The development must be implemented in accordance with the approved 

plans.
3. A schedule of materials must be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 

local planning authority prior to the commencement of development.
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 2015, No development within Part 1 Class A, 
B, D, E shall be erected within the curtilage of the site without the prior grant of 
planning permission by the Local Planning Authority.

5. Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted the proposed means 
of access onto Broadwaters Avenue is to be formed and laid out and 
constructed strictly in accordance with the local highway authority’s 
specifications and all ancillary works specified shall be undertaken.

6. The vision splays shown on drawing no. 20160911-03, Rev B shall not be 
obstructed by any object, structure, planting or other material with a height 
exceeding or growing above 0.6 metres as measured from carriageway level.

7. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the parking 
and turning areas shall be provided in accordance with drawing no. 20160911-
03, Rev B and shall be constructed, laid out, surfaced, drained and completed 
to be compliant with sustainable drainage (SuDS) principles, and shall be 
retained unobstructed except for the parking of vehicles associated with the 
development at all times.

The meeting closed at 7.25 pm

Chairman Date

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

APPLICATION NO. P16/S3608/O
APPLICATION TYPE OUTLINE
REGISTERED 31.10.2016
PARISH CROWMARSH GIFFORD
WARD MEMBER(S) Felix Bloomfield

Richard Pullen
APPLICANT Bloor Homes and Hallam Land Management
SITE Land to the east of Benson Lane Crowmarsh 

Gifford, OX10 8ED
PROPOSAL Outline planning application for up to 150 dwellings 

together with associated access, public open space, 
landscaping and amenity areas.

AMENDMENTS None
GRID REFERENCE 461829/189417
OFFICER Cathie Scotting

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Permission is sought for new housing in Crowmarsh, identified as a ‘larger village’ in 

the Council’s Core Strategy. The Core Strategy identified that larger villages would 
receive new housing and the subsequent Refined Options (2015) indicated that 
numbers would represent a proportional increase. However since that time new 
housing figures for Oxfordshire, including South Oxfordshire, have been determined 
through the Strategic Housing Market Assessment and this council is having to cater 
for higher numbers. Whilst it is the Council’s preferred route to allocate sites through 
the local planning process, South Oxfordshire no longer has an identified 5 year 
supply of deliverable housing. In such situations the National Planning Policy 
Framework advises that the council’s housing policies are out of date and less weight 
can be attributed to these policies and that there should be a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development.  
 

1.2 The Refined Options describes Crowmarsh Gifford as one of our smallest ‘larger 
villages’. It is located on the opposite bank of the River Thames from Wallingford, and 
it has its own separate village identity. It has a limited range of services and facilities 
(a shop, two pubs and a primary school) but benefits from being in easy reach of 
shops and services in Wallingford. A notable feature is the collection of large 
employment sites along Benson Lane, consisting of the environmental science cluster 
in the grounds of the historic Howbery Park and the council offices (recently damaged 
in a serious fire). The high frequency bus service between Oxford and Reading runs 
through Crowmarsh Gifford, providing opportunities for sustainable travel.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The site is greenfield agricultural land with public rights of way running adjacent and 

within the site. The site is within the setting of the Chilterns AONB although it is not 
within the designated AONB area. There are protected trees to the north of the site. 

2.2 A location plan is attached (Appendix A). Permission is sought for up to 150 homes 
including 40% affordable housing on existing agricultural land. The application is in 
outline with all matters reserved except access. Vehicular access would be taken from 
Benson Lane to the west of the site. The development extends east to the public 
footpath running north – south in the field. Marsh Lane forms the northern boundary, 
along which lie a belt of trees protected by TPO. To the south is another public footpath 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S3608/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

adjacent to which are the rear gardens of residential properties in The Street.

2.3      Attached is the Parameters Plan (Appendix B) Illustrative Masterplan (Appendix C), and 
the Access Plan (Appendix D).   

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 A summary of representations is provided below. All of the representations and 

submitted documents received by stakeholders and interested parties can be viewed 
on the website:
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF
=P16/S3608/O

Crowmarsh Parish 
Council

Object:
 Number of dwellings is more than 3 times the amount 

allocated to Crowmarsh in SHLAA 
 Drastic increase in traffic in the Street, Benson Lane 

and impact on the Wallingford Bridge and High Street
 NPPF says preference should be given to brownfield 

sites 
 Pressure on local infrastructure – schools, doctors, 

dentists and sewerage system,
 Legally protected owls and adders are on the site 

Wallingford Town 
Council

Object
Amenity consideration – over development

Benson Parish 
Council

Object 
Cumulative impact to the Benson/Crowmarsh Gifford 
infrastructure and services such as roads, medical services 
and schools.

3.2 Responses (108) objecting to the development have been received from local 
residents. Below is a list of the types of objections.

 Local planning
o Previous application dismissed at appeal – should be refused again for same 

reasons 
o First of three phases inappropriate and out of scale for the village
o Site not in local plan - alternatives are already agreed with SODC via community 

consultation
o Granting permission would undermine local democracy
o Use former SODC site before building anywhere else – is brownfield site and in 

line with NPPF
o Granting permission will create a precedent for approval of remainder of Bloor 

land and undermine SODC’s ability to safeguard other greenfield sites/village 
character, leading to  urbanisation of Crowmarsh

o Contrary to NPPF, Core Strategy and SODC Local Plan 2011
o Site plan inaccurate

 Traffic impact
o Increase risk of serious accident around Wallingford Bridge and on A4074 

roundabout
o Site plan shows 3 site entrances within yards of each other – acceptable to 

highways?
o Traffic will overwhelm mini-roundabout at Benson Lane/The Street

Page 22

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P16/S3608/O
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P16/S3608/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

o Access to X39/X40 bus route to Reading via southbound side of A4074 will be 
extremely dangerous without better refuge arrangement for crossing road

o Traffic crossing Wallingford Bridge already at a maximum, bridge can be clogged 
with vehicles which then queue back to A4074 and into Wallingford

o Possible peak hour closure/one way working of Wallingford Bridge on air quality 
grounds will cause new residents to use the new bridge to access the town – 
potentially the number of cars waiting to leave Crowmarsh would be trapped and 
constant slow-moving traffic jams 

 Impact on Crowmarsh
o Unsympathetic to and entirely out of character with village 
o Large intrusion into countryside against NPPF
o Overbearing and out of scale proposals will suffocate the village

 Housing
o Would prefer 50 houses at most to provide gradual and managed expansion. 

Link Bloor access to Lane End not Benson Lane to reduce traffic in village centre, 
don’t build site butting on to Marsh Lane – should be protected from adjacent 
housing devt. 

o Developer intends to build total of 450 houses in total on site, doubling the size of 
Crowmarsh and a massive overdevelopment of the agreed allocation of 48.

o Design is out of character, does not demonstrate eco-standards or permeability, 
also ugly piecemeal ill-thought premature development

o Extreme overdevelopment in a village already overpopulated by traffic
o Density very high compared with existing village – plot sizes very small and 

parking inadequate, leading to parking and access nightmares.
o Would suffer from noise from RAF Benson

 Local infrastructure
o Too much development for existing village infrastructure: sewerage, schools, 

doctor, roads. 
o Local services limited (2 pubs 1 small shop) and would be under severe pressure
o Proposed surrounding footpath not a good environment when fenced in and 

isolated at night or during quiet times
o Residents will rely on access to Wallingford for most services. If restrictions 

imposed on access via Wallingford Bridge this will mean their driving to town via 
the bypass 

 Sustainability
o Loss of agricultural land will increase flood risk. The Bloor site is 5m N of 

geological flood plain
o The field is marshy and groundwater levels high
o Loss of wildlife – skylarks and badgers
o Proposed single access point to development will create additional congestion 

and pollution
o Wallingford already has poor air quality due to traffic. This will worsen with 

additional traffic using the bridge for access to the town.
o Houses not specified in accordance with Home Quality Mark – should be a 

requirement

 AONB

Page 23



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

o Adverse impact on views from AONB/AONB setting
o Need to maintain the existing envelope of Crowmarsh, adjacent to the AONB
o Sea of red roofed two storey cheap houses and their backs will be detrimental to 

views of AONB

3.3 A local residents group CRAG have objected to the application, on the grounds of 
sustainability making the following comments:

o Lack of education capacity, new development should provide costs for 
increased capacity 

o Traffic and Wallingford bridge – development should be limited e.g 48 dwellings 
as bridge cannot cope, increased air pollution and lack of parking

o Wallingford medical centre is at capacity and new development should provide 
monies towards expansion  

o Crowmarsh has just one shop and the facilities in Wallingford are poor. 
Developer should invest in infrastructure e.g. car parking

o There are few jobs in Crowmarsh
o Utilities – capacity of electricity and sewerage outdated

3.4 Comments from consultees:

Consultee Comments
Oxfordshire County 
Council 
Transport

No objection subject to conditions and legal agreement to 
secure highway works to increase capacity and safety 
particularly for cyclists :
- Portway (N&S, A4074) / Nosworthy Way (A4130) 
roundabout 
- Portway (A4074) / The Street / A4074 / Clacks Lane / 
Crowmarsh Hill (A4130) roundabout
- Stop Line at the terminus of Benson Lane with the A4074 is 
required
Contributions ot public transport and infrastructure and travel 
plan sought.

Oxfordshire County 
Council
Education

The existing school site at Crowmarsh is undersized to 
support expansion and additional land will be required. If the 
solution necessitates a cost in acquiring suitable land, a 
proportion of that cost will be sought from the applicant by 
way a s106 contribution.
The county council would expect that any expansion of 
schools which is necessary as a result of local housing
development, would be financially supported through CIL

Oxfordshire County 
Council - Minerals

No objection 
Mineral safeguarding areas in Oxfordshire have yet to be 
determined. Constraints imposed by existing adjacent 
housing would be likely to preclude mineral working
within much of the proposed development site; and additional 
indirect sterilisation of mineral resources within adjoining land 
would be likely to be of relatively limited extent. There is not a 
sufficiently strong reason to justify the safeguarding of 
mineral deposits against sterilisation by the proposed 
development.

Oxfordshire County 
Council - Other

No objection subject to conditions
(Archaeology, Fire hydrants)

Natural England No objection
The proposed development will not have significant adverse 

Page 24



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

impacts on protected landscapes. We note that much of the 
7.35ha site supports Grade 2 agricultural land but have no 
comments. Recommend condition in respect of soil handling. 
 

Chilterns 
Conservation Board 

No Objection
Most appropriate mechanism to establish sites is through 
plan led process. This greenfield site is within the setting of 
the AONB. The site is visible from the rising land of the 
Chilterns escarpment to the south and south-east of the site 
and there are partial or glimpsed views of the site from public 
footpaths in the Chilterns AONB. The development site as 
proposed does not breach the ‘reduced developable area’ set 
out the 2014 Landscape Capacity Assessment for Sites1 
If the LPA accept the principle the following conditions are
Recommended:

o Land east of footpath remains undeveloped in 
perpetuity

o Retention and reinforcement of trees and hedgerows
o New belts of planting
o Controls over lighting
o Controls over building heights / materials

Environment Agency No response
Thames Water No objection subject to conditions regarding drainage and 

water supply.
Monson Engineering 
(Drainage)

No objection subject to conditions re drainage and SUDs 
design 

SGN Plant 
protection

A gas pipeline runs through the site. Safeguarding during 
construction required. 

CPRE Object:
Scale of development, Impact on services and infrastructure 
including traffic and the Wallingford bridge. 
Development of the land would detract from the 
recreational value to local people. 

Environmental 
Protection

No objection subject to conditions (Noise) 
No objection (Land Contamination) 
Air quality effects have not been quantified – mitigation is 
required e.g. Electric Vehicle charging points (Air Quality)

Housing No objection subject to agreement on 40% affordable 
housing, tenure and mix and distribution.

Urban Design 
Officer

No objection
Identifies several matters to consider at detailed stages, 
including character, design rationale, treatment of 
boundaries, open space and parking.

Landscape 
Consultant to SODC

The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment complies with 
good practice although there are a number of reservations 
including lack of valuation on sensitivity and visualisations. 
The LVIA agrees with the council’s Landscape Capacity 
Study in terms of the sensitivity of the site, and the 
developable area recommended in the Study, however the 
density appears higher. 

1 Edges of the Larger Villages in South Oxfordshire, carried out by Kirkham Landscape
Planning Ltd/ Terra Firma for SODC 

Page 25



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

The degree to which the proposals comply with the landscape 
requirements of the NPPF depends on the relative weight that 
is given to the protection and enhancement of landscape 
features and green space, against the loss of countryside that 
contributes to local character.

Countryside Officer No objection subject to conditions
The habitats present on the site are common and widespread 
and of relatively low ecological value. The illustrative 
masterplan demonstrates that the development could be 
achieved whilst protecting those areas of greater value and 
allowing for the creation of new habitats.

Forestry Officer No objection subject to conditions
The loss of existing vegetaion is not a constraint to 
development but will need to be mitigated, as part of a well 
designed landscaping scheme. 

Conservation Officer No objection
There are no designated heritage assets on the site. 
In view of the relationship of the proposed development to 
these heritage assets there would be no harm to any 
neighbouring designated assets that would diminish their 
significance or harm the setting.

Waste Management 
Officer

No objection
Details of waste storage, vehicle tracking will need to be 
considered at detailed stages. 

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P16/S3883/SCR – EIA not required (16/12/2016) 

Outline planning application for up to 150 dwellings together with associated access, 
public open space, landscaping and amenity areas, Crowmarsh Gifford.

The proposal constitutes Schedule 2 (category 10(b) urban development projects) and 
is above the indicative threshold of 5 ha (7.35 ha) and is visible from the Chilterns Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty, a sensitive area. Having regard to the characteristics of 
the development and other development currently proposed in the vicinity it is not 
considered that there is potential for significant environmental effects. All issues are 
considered to be of local significance only and can be examined through the normal 
planning process.

4.2 P09/W0201/O - Refused (24/06/2009) - Refused on appeal (02/12/2009)
Outline application for the erection of 210 dwellings (including affordable housing 
provision), associated landscaping and arboricultural works, parking, public open space 
provision, together with a vehicular and pedestrian access from Benson Lane and Lane 
End.  

The key reason for the dismissal of the appeal was the conflict with the Local Plan 
housing policies and housing land supply at the time of the proposal. The inspector also 
commented that the addition of 210 further dwellings would increase the size of the 
village in an ad hoc manner, ahead of the imminent Core Strategy, and use a 
disproportionately large area of land.

4.3 P08/W1028/O - Refused (19/12/2008) – Appeal Withdrawn (13/07/2009)
Outline application for the erection of 420 dwellings (including affordable housing 
provision), associated landscaping and arboricultural works, parking, public open space 

Page 26

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P09/W0201/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

provision and sports pavilion, together with a new vehicular and pedestrian access from 
Benson Lane and link road to the A4074.

4.4 P08/W1029/O – Withdrawn before determination (09/12/2008)
Outline application for the erection of 200 dwellings including affordable housing) 
associated landscaping and aboricultural works, parking and public open space 
provision together with a new vehicular and pedestrian access from Benson Lane and 
link road to the A4074.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework

5.2 National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance

5.3 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 

CS1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSS1 Overall strategy 
CSM2 Transport assessments and travel plans
CSH1 Amount & distribution of housing 
CSH2 Density: Minimum density of 25 dwellings/ha unless adverse impact on area
CSH3 Affordable housing: 
CSH4 Meeting housing needs
CSB1 Biodiversity 
CSG1 Green Infrastructure
CSQ3 Design: 
CSEN1 Landscape 
CSI1 Infrastructure
CSC1 Delivery and contingency: if sites not developed in accordance with timescales 
contingency measures will apply    

5.4 Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan policy SD10; and policy M8 in the 
Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Part 1 – Core Strategy, Proposed 
Submission Document August 2015 

5.5 South Oxfordshire 2011 Saved Policies
 
G2 The district's countryside, settlements and environmental resources will be 
protected from adverse developments
G4 Protecting the countryside
C4 Landscape setting and Historic character and appearance of settlement 
CON 12,13 and 14 Archaeology 
EP1 Protection from polluting emissions
EP2 Noise
EP3 Lighting
EP6 Surface water
EP8 Contaminated Land 
D1 Good design
D2 Vehicle and cycle parking
D4 Privacy and Daylight
D6 Community Safety
D7 Access
D10  Waste
H4 Housing 
R2 Outdoor playing space

Page 27



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

R3 Indoor sport
R6 Informal open space
R8 Public right of way
T1 Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2 Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.6 Emerging South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2032

The council is preparing a new Local Plan, which will set out how development will be
planned and delivered across South Oxfordshire to 2032. Our third consultation on our
‘Preferred Options’ closed in August 2016. In relation to housing growth within our
villages, our Preferred Options proposes to deliver homes through the Neighbourhood
Plan process. Where Neighbourhood Plans are not being made the council are working 
with parishes to identify site allocations. Crowmarsh is not preparing a Neighbourhood 
Plan.

5.7  South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016
 Landscape Capacity Assessment for Sites on the Edge of the Larger Villages in 

South Oxfordshire May 2014

5.8 EIA Regulations

As defined by the EIA regulations and guidance, the site is not within a sensitive area 
and nor will it have a significant urbanising effect (e.g. a new development of more than 
1000 dwellings).  The effects from this proposal are likely to be of local importance but 
not significant within the context of the EIA regulations and guidance. The LPA has 
determined that this proposal is not likely to give rise to significant environmental 
impacts and is therefore not EIA development and a full EIA statement is not required.

The EIA guidance states that local planning authorities (LPA) should always have 
regard to the possible cumulative effects arising from any existing or approved 
development. Other planning applications for development in Crowmarsh have been 
submitted for consideration.  The LPA considered these proposals in the EIA screening 
report and concluded there would not be significant cumulative environmental effects in 
the context of the EIA regulations and guidance.

5.9 CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The relevant planning considerations in the determination of this application are: 

Principle of the development, including:
- how the development of the site fits with the council’s spatial strategy
- the council’s housing land supply position

Matters of detail / technical issues, including:
- affordable housing and housing mix
- transport and highway matters 
- landscape impact
- trees and ecology
- design and layout
- flood risk and surface / foul drainage
- other environmental matters 
- neighbour amenity and amenity of future residents

Page 28



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

Infrastructure requirements, including:
- cumulative impact of proposed development in Crowmarsh
- provision for education
- on-site infrastructure and highway works to be secured under a legal agreement

6.2

Council’s spatial strategy

The South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) allocated development in the main 
towns and these are either allocated in the Core Strategy or in Neighbourhood 
Plans. In addition the plan supports development for the Larger Villages, including 
Crowmarsh. The Core Strategy does not allocate a target number of homes to 
Crowmarsh, but in setting out the spatial vision for the district it requires the ‘Larger 
Villages’ to provide for 1,154 dwellings as part of a total housing requirement for 
11,487 homes in the district to 2027. In September 2013, the Council’s Cabinet 
Committee approved a draft housing distribution for the Larger Villages, which 
included about 48 homes to be allocated to Crowmarsh. However the Preferred 
Options in 2016 reported that the Oxfordshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
(SHMA (2014) requires a higher delivery thereby giving an overall Objectively 
Assessed Need (OAN) for South Oxfordshire 2011 to 2032 of 15,750 based on 750 
houses per annum. This is a sizable uplift from the requirement for 547 homes per 
annum set out in the SOCS. This does not include an unmet need for Oxford which 
could make the total figure 19,500. Development for housing in Crowmarsh therefore 
complies with the principles of the Core Strategy and the emerging Local Plan.

Housing land supply
  

6.3  Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states "Housing applications should be 
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be 
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a 
five-year supply of deliverable housing sites".

 Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states where the development plan is absent, 
silent or relevant policies are out-of-date permission should be granted 
unless “any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in 
this Framework taken as a whole; or specific policies in this Framework 
indicate development should be restricted”.

 Paragraph 215 of the NPPF provides that due weight should be given to 
relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency 
with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the NPPF, 
the greater the weight that may be given).

6.4 Successive appeal inspectors in 2016 advised that South Oxfordshire should use 
the SHMA figures and that South Oxfordshire does not have a five year supply of 
housing. Based on the evidence of the SHMA and past delivery (including the need 
for a 20% buffer due to under delivery) South Oxfordshire’s housing supply is 
currently estimated to be 3.8 years. This means that the policies for the supply of 
housing in the SOCS are given significantly less weight. Applications for housing 
should now be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development and should be permitted unless there is planning harm that outweighs 
the benefit of providing new housing.  Sustainability including cumulative impacts 
and infrastructure are considered further in the report. 

Affordable Housing and Housing Mix

Page 29



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

6.5 Policy CSH3 requires that the council seeks 40% of the total housing to be 
affordable and a tenure mix of 75% rented/ 25% shared ownership. This is agreed 
by the applicant and would be secured by S106 agreement. 

6.6 The Housing team have advised that an affordable housing mix along the following 
lines is appropriate. A final mix that meets the housing need objectives would be 
agreed in the S106 agreement. 

Table1: Affordable Housing mix

1 bed 
flats
46sqm

2 bed 
flats
57sqm

2 bed 4 
person 
House
75sqm

3 bed 5 
person 
House
90sqm

4 bed 6 
person 
house 
105sqm

Total

Rented 6 6 17 13 3 45
S/O 0 0 10 5 0 15
Total 6 6 27 18 3 60

6.7 The proposed market mix closely follows the recommended SHMA mix and is 
acceptable. A condition will ensure that the proposed mix is delivered, unless an 
alternative mix is agreed but it will need to be in general conformity with the SHMA 
guidance. In addition the council will seek lifetime homes on all affordable homes 
with a ground floor entrance and 10% of market dwellings.

Table 2 : Market mix

1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed
SHMA guidance 6% 27% 43% 24%
Proposed % 6.6% 24.4% 44.4% 24.4%
Proposed number 6 22 40 22

Transport and Highway matters 

6.8 This application is an outline application with all matters reserved except access. 
Vehicular access would be taken from Benson Lane – see Appendix D. Subject to 
detailed design this access is acceptable. Around 87 trips in the peak hours are 
estimated (although this is based on 175 dwellings). The Transport Assessment 
accepts that capacity at the following roundabouts need improving.

 Portway (N&S, A4074) / Nosworthy Way (A4130) roundabout
 Portway (A4074) / The Street / A4074 / Clacks Lane / Crowmarsh Hill 

(A4130) roundabout
In addition the highway authority are requiring improvements at the Benson Lane / 
A4074 junction. The Transport Assessment advises that the junction of Benson Lane 
and the Street and the Wallingford Bridge will operate within capacity and the 
highway authority has not identified any measures for these infrastructure elements. 

6.9 The development is just over 1km from the centre of Wallingford and would take 15-
20 minutes to walk. Additionally there are buses that serve the site and Wallingford 
and wider destinations. There are some facilities in Crowmarsh (two pubs, a school, 
a small shop, playing fields, pavilion, play area and swimming pool and park) and 
the site is reasonable distance / time from all other services and facilities in 
Wallingford e.g. supermarket and shops, health and secondary school. This site is in 
a sustainable location.

6.10 A financial contribution is sought to pump-prime the X39 / X40 bus service (Oxford to 

Page 30



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

Reading) which passes the site to a service frequency of three buses per hour with a 
view to eventual commercial sustainability. Monies are also sought for the bus stop 
improvements (shelter and real time display) opposite the site. In addition monies 
are sought for travel plan monitoring. 

6.11 The exact parking arrangements will be considered at reserved matters. However 
the Transport Assessment (para. 3.29) advises that minimum standards will be met 
and will include visitor parking. 

Landscape

6.12 Policy CSEN1 Landscape requires that the district’s distinct landscape character and 
key features will be protected against inappropriate development and where possible 
enhanced. The Council has sought advice from an independent consultant and also 
has regard to the Landscape Capacity study which considered site CR02 which 
comprises the fields south and north of Marsh Lane. See Appendix E attached. It 
recommends that only part of CR02 is considered further on landscape and visual 
grounds, due to the strong links with the wider countryside and the possible harm to 
the Chilterns AONB. In relation to this reduced area, the study indicates that the 
density should be around 25dph (dwellings per hectare). The current application site 
is consistent with the approach in this study as it is within this reduced 
recommended area and there is a net density of around 33.5 dph and a gross 
density of 20 dph. 

6.13 Subject to conditions requiring landscaping and tree planting both around and within 
the residential development, this development will not give rise to material adverse 
effects upon the setting of the AONB. It is not within the sensitive area identified by 
the Landscape Study. It is not considered appropriate to restrict the use of land 
outside the application site. If there are any future proposals these will be 
determined on their merits. It is clear however that the landscape character of the 
site will materially alter including the view and enjoyment from public footpaths within 
and immediately adjoining the site. This matter needs to be weighed against other 
sustainability criteria and is discussed in the conclusion.

6.14 The agricultural quality of the land is within the best and most versatile agricultural 
land. However the site area (less than 20 ha) means it does not fall to be considered 
by Natural England.  NPPF Para 112 states that local planning authorities should 
take into account the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile 
agricultural land. The site is Grade 2 very good agricultural land quality. 
Development of this site will reduce the availability of very good agricultural land by 
7.35 ha and this needs to be weighed against the benefits of housing supply. This 
site is considered a sustainable location for housing and in the context of the need 
for housing, there is not an alternative area of poorer quality agricultural land that 
could be used.

Page 31



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

Forestry

6.15 There are no objections in relation to trees. New access will involve removal of 
existing vegetation along Benson Lane, the majority of which are dead or dying due 
to Dutch Elm disease. New planting will be proposed along this boundary and 
elsewhere on the site.

Ecology

6.16 The Countryside officer has no objection to the scheme, subject to a condition 
requiring the enhancement of biodiversity on the site. Following representations 
regarding certain species being present the Countryside officer has further advised 
that such species are unlikely to be present.  

Flood risk and surface / foul drainage

6.17 A flood risk assessment has been submitted with the application. The site strata 
comprises sand and gravel underlaid by chalk. The river Thames lies to the west of 
the site yet the site is lies within Flood Zone 1, the lowest category of risk. Thames 
Water and Monson (Drainage) require conditions in respect of the detailed drainage 
design for foul and surface water, and management of SUDs. The SUDs will 
comprise on site attenuation in the form of swales and attenuation basins.  

Environmental matters 

6.18 The application is accompanied by a noise assessment, which includes assessment 
of aircraft noise. There is no objection subject to conditions requiring mitigation set 
out in the noise report. Additionally there will be some minor effects on air quality 
and conditions are recommended to promote more sustainable travel e.g. electric 
car charging and cycle parking, plus tree planting. 

Design and Layout

6.19 The parameters plan (Appendix B) show the respective areas of land use on the site 
and the accompanying masterplan is illustrative (Appendix C). In general terms the 
areas of open space and landscaping and SUDs are on the periphery of the site 
surrounding the residential development. The open space represents about 39% of 
the site. Significant trees including large species will be required within the 
development to assimilate the development into the landscape. This can be secured 
by condition and dealt with at reserved matters. Comments have also been made 
upon the suitability of 2.5 storey dwellings which are located in the centre of the built 
development. Provided there is tree planting with higher species within the 
development a proportion of higher storey will be acceptable and can assist with 
character in the development.  

Neighbour amenity and amenity of future residents

6.20 The layout has been designed so that the public right of way at the southern 
boundary remains and is set within a landscaped green corridor. Proposed housing 
will face this public footpath (and other footpaths) which meets design objectives in 
terms of security. The privacy of the residents in the Street will be protected - the 
Parameter and Illustrative Masterplan indicate that front elevations of new dwellings 
would be approximately 30 m from the rear boundaries of properties in the Street 
and approximately over 60m from rear elevations. The residential properties in 

Page 32



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

Benson Lane will be closer to the proposed development being an approximate 
distance of 30m away (elevations). A buffer area of landscaping and SUDs would be 
sited in between the rear boundary and new housing, and new housing can be side / 
gable ended to avoid direct overlooking.

6.21 The amenity of existing and future residents will be considered in detail at reserved 
matters stage. At a net density of 33.5 dwellings there should be adequate space for 
amenity and compliance with overlooking distances.

Cumulative development and Infrastructure  

6.22 Local residents and CRAG have commented on the capacity of the local 
infrastructure to cater for this development and other sites, both consented (e.g. 
Carmel College and CABI) and potentially other sites currently in the planning 
process. At the time of the writing decisions on two other current applications have 
not be made however an update will be made at Planning Committee. The two other 
applications comprise P16/S3852/FUL for 100 homes at Newnham Manor and 
P16/S3665/O for 80 homes West of Old Reading Road and both are within the 
Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The parish council and residents have 
also commented on the fate of the former council offices and whether this brownfield 
site might be used for housing. The former offices are currently unavailable, exist as 
an employment land use, however an update on it’s future is expected later this 
year.

6.23 Many have commented that the scale of this development is out of proportion with 
the existing village, a factor the appeal inspector considered in 2009.  It is true that 
this development and potentially others represent a material increase over the 
existing village housing numbers. The census information 2011 advised that were 
636 dwellings in the parish and this will now be higher due to the development at 
Lister Wilder site. The policy context today is very different from the 2009 position 
when the council had a policy compliant supply of housing. The question now is 
whether this development is harmful and unacceptable in planning terms. Above it 
has been explained that the site is in a sustainable location and subject to 
conditions, the environmental impacts are not unacceptable. The remaining issue is 
infrastructure.  

6.24

Education

In particular the capacity of the primary school in Crowmarsh Gifford has been 
highlighted as an issue. This development could generate 50 early and primary 
school children. The Education Authority are exploring the possibility of acquiring 
additional land to extend the school, which could also cater for other developments. 
If the education authority need to purchase land they require a sum of c. £68k from 
the developers of Benson Lane as a proportional cost of the extra land. This is in 
addition to education building costs which they will seek from CIL.  As such extra 
provision for education is planned but the exact provision will depend on progress 
with acquiring land and the scope of the funds available to proceed with expansion. 
In terms of this development however, the scheme would still be considered 
acceptable even if land at Crowmarsh school was not ultimately acquired as the 
developers are prepared to pay the contribution towards extra land to increase 
school capacity. We know from the OCC education response that pupils interchange 
between Crowmarsh and Wallingford and provided there is sufficient capacity in the 
locality, education needs will be met. 

Page 33



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

Other Infrastructure

6.25 Highway works and contributions towards public transport and infrastructure and 
travel plan monitoring have been mentioned above. These will be subject to 
indexation are current costs are:

OCC item Amount
Public transport £150,000 (index-linked, RPIX Nov 2016)
Bus stop infrastructure £46,134 (Index-linked, BCIS Nov 2016)
Travel Plan monitoring £1240

6.26 The district will seek on site infrastructure for public open space and play. Two play 
areas are proposed on the parameters plan and one could be integrated with the 
parish council village hall land. The district will also seek monies for recycling, street 
naming and a monitoring fee, in accordance with fees applicable at the time of 
payment. These have recently been updated as of 1 March 2017. If current fees are 
applied this is in the order of: 

District item Amount
Recycling £170 per dwelling
Street naming £134 per 10 dwellings
Monitoring fee £2268

6.27 The development will be subject to CIL (£150 per sq. m index linked) and were 150 
dwellings built (90 market dwellings), at an average dwelling size of 100 sq. m and 
some with garages (indicative for the purposes of calculation) the CIL amount would 
be in the region of £1.5 million.  CIL is mandatory and the applicants have agreed to 
all the S106 contributions, on site infrastructure and off site highway works.

6.28 There is good access to other facilities including two pubs and a small shop. More 
housing will assist with the long term viability of these facilities. There are playing 
fields, a pavilion, the Riverside pool and park close by, and the river Thames path 
which provides amenity.  Other facilities such as health, secondary school and 
shops are in Wallingford, which is within walking and cycling distance. This site is 
considered to be in a very sustainable location with good access to a range of 
facilities.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The development is in a sustainable location with good access to facilities and services. 

The NPPF advises a presumption in favour of sustainable development and where 
there is a lack of 5 year housing supply, paragraph 49 is engaged, determining that 
housing policies restricting the supply of housing are out of date. Paragraph 14 requires 
that the council should grant permission unless any adverse impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. In order to judge whether a 
development is sustainable it must be assessed against the economic, social and 
environmental planning roles.

7.2 The provision of housing including 40% affordable housing is a significant social benefit 
and a key policy requirement of the NPPF and Local Planning Authorities. The 
development incorporates public open space and play areas which will benefit 
proposed and existing residents. Significant however is the impact upon the capacity of 
existing social and economic infrastructure, a matter highlighted by parish councils and 

Page 34



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

local residents. The current primary school is at capacity and cannot cater for the 
development unless it is extended. There are proposals to extend the capacity of the 
school albeit these are at an early stage and the exact provision cannot yet be 
confirmed. There is however a proposed solution and the applicants of this 
development are prepared to provide S106 monies for education land for the expansion 
of primary schools that could serve the site. 

7.3 The development will have an economic role in that it will bring construction jobs to the 
area for a temporary period and the extra housing in the village will assist with the 
viability of existing services and facilities. Improvements to the highway junctions in the 
area will assist traffic flow and improve safety for cyclists. There will be a minor 
economic dis-benefit due to the loss of the agricultural land.  In addition there will be 
temporary environmental impacts resulting from construction and some negative 
impacts on air quality, however effects can be mitigated.

7.4 The key environmental impact will be upon the landscape however the material impact 
will be upon the local character of the site and the enjoyment of public footpaths within 
and immediately adjoining the site. Taking into account the landscape advice the 
council has received including the Landscape Capacity Study, the comments of the 
Chilterns AONB Board and an independent consultant it is not considered the impact 
on the wider setting of the AONB would be harmful, provided there is satisfactory 
mitigation. Accordingly the impact is not considered to be significant. 

7.5 When assessing the planning balance the only negative impact of note is upon the local 
landscape. This is not considered to be significant and demonstrable against the 
benefits this housing scheme can bring. In the context of a lack of a 5 year supply of 
housing the proposed scheme incorporating a mix of housing, open space and 
landscaping, together with provision for infrastructure is considered to materially 
outweigh the dis-benefits of the development and it is therefore recommended that 
planning permission is granted.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To authorise the head of planning to grant planning permission subject to: 

A. The completion of a S106 agreement securing:

1. 40% of total housing to be affordable housing (75% of which to be 
affordable rented) and minimum size dwellings (in Housing response).

2. Transport contributions for an improved bus service and bus stop 
serving the site (identified in Oxfordshire County Council response).  

3. Contribution for land to expand school capacity (identified in 
Oxfordshire County Council respo.nse). 

4. Off-site highway works (S278 agreement) (identified in Oxfordshire 
County Council response).

5. On site public open space and play and provisions for maintenance. 
6. Contributions for on-site recycling/waste bins and street naming and 

S106 monitoring (fees applicable at time of implementation).
  

B. Conditions in respect of the following: 

1. Approved plans. 
2. Reserved matters – submitted within two years.
3. Tree protection.
4. Archaeology.
5. Construction and traffic management plan.

Page 35



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

6. Hours of Construction including hours.
7. S278 off site highway works.
8. Access and vision splays.
9. Turning area and parking.
10. Estate roads, access and footpaths.
11. Foul drainage strategy and details.
12. Surface water drainage details.
13. Water supply study.
14. Biodiversity enhancement strategy.
15. Soil handling.
16. Landscape scheme. 
17. Landscape management and maintenance.
18. External and street lighting.
19. Noise protection scheme.
20. Electric charging points.
21. Housing mix.
22. Location / distribution of affordable housing.
23. Lifetime homes.
24. Cycle parking.
25. Material samples.
26. Recycling and waste storage.

Author:           Cathie Scotting
E-mail:            Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Contact No:   01235 422600

Page 36



Appendix A

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



EXCEPT FOR THE KEY, ALL NEW OBJECTS SHOULD BE PLACED ON 
LAYERS UNDERNEATH THE LOCKED FRAME LAYER.

FOR BEST RESULTS PRINT WITH BITMAP OPTION SWITCHED OFF.

north

north

no
rth

KEY

99

99

1:50,000 at A3 - kilometres: 

0 1 20.5

1:10,000 at A3 - metres: 

100 500200 300 4000

1:12,500 at A3 - kilometres: 

0 0.5 1

1:20,000 at A3 - kilometres: 

0 0.5 1

1:5,000 at A3 - metres: 

0 100 20050

1:2,500 at A3 - metres: 

0 50 100 200

1:2,000 at A3 - metres: 

0 50 100

1:1,250 at A3 - metres: 

0 50 100

1:1,000 at A3 - metres: 

10 5020 30 400

1:500 at A3 - metres: 

0 10 205

1:250 at A3 - metres: 

0 5 10 20

1:200 at A3 - metres: 

0 5 10

1:125 at A3 - metres: 

0 5 10

1:100 at A3 - metres: 

1 52 3 40

1:50 at A3 - metres: 

0 1 20.5

1:25 at A3 - metres: 

0 0.5 1 2

1:20 at A3 - metres: 

0 0.5 1

1:10 at A3 - centimetres: 

10 5020 30 400

1:2,000 at A3 - metres: 

0 50 100

2079.32/06B

north

Site boundary

Additional land ownership boundary

Main access

Residential parcels:
2-2.5 storeys
Residential parcels:
2 storeys

SuDS/swale and wetland habitat

Green infrastructure network

Existing public rights of way

Play areas

CLIENT:

Hallam Land Management and Bloor Homes
PROJECT:

Benson Lane Masterplan
TITLE:

Parameters Plan
SCALE AT A3: DATE:

1:2,000  September 2016

Maximum number of dwellings will be 150, with 
an average density of 33.5dw/ha.

Higher density development and 2.5 storeys will
be occur only within the darker orange zone.
A maximum of two storeys and a lower average
density will occur within the paler orange areas.

DEVELOPMENT STATISTICS:
Application Site Area:  7.35ha
Net developable area (residential):   4.49ha
Green Infrastructure, inc SUDS, habitat creation 
and formal play:   2.86ha
Number of Homes:  150
Net density:  33.5dw/ha

Appendix B

P
age 38



CLIENT

Hallam Land Management and 
Bloor Homes
PROJECT
Benson Lane, Crowmarsh Gifford

TITLE
ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN IN CONTEXT

SCALE AT A3: 1:2000      DATE: Aug 2016

2079.32/04D

metres

0 100

BE
N

SO
N

 L
AN

E

THE STREET

CL
AC

K’
S 

LA
NE

A
4074

NORTH

MARSH LANE

New edge would be established: native 
hedgerow and tree planting, and creation 
of a swale with wet grassland and marginal 
planting would provide new habitat, and 
a continuous N-S ecological corridor. The 
edge would enhance the footpath route, 
whilst allowing filtered views from the site to 
the wider landscape. 

Existing public right of way would be 
retained along the southern edge of the 
site and set within a wide green corridor 
including new native planting,

New island and crossing point to 
connect the site to Benson Lane and 
the network of public footpaths linking 
to Crowmarsh Gifford and Wallingford.

Existing poor quality hedge 
replaced with new native 
hedgerow with hedgerow trees. 
Dwellings would front Benson 
Lane, continuing the character of 
Benson Lane to the south.

The development could provide a 
footpath link to the village hall. A 
small play area could be located 
adjacent to the hall, enhancing 
facilities available at the hall.

Dwellings front open space to 
provide a high degree of natural 
surveillance. Lightly trafficked 
lanes and private drives would 
provide access to these dwellings. 

Local Equipped Area 
of Play (LEAP)

New native hedge with fence 
would be located between the 
development and Marsh Lane, 
with an access created. A habitat 
buffer would be retained between 
Marsh Lane and built development, 
providing protection to the trees and 
their Root Protection Areas. The 
buffer would retain the character of 
Marsh Lane.

Potential to enhance 
existing boundary with 
additional planting.

Crowmarsh Gifford C 
of E primary school

Sustainable Urban Drainage: 
Basins would be located on the 
lower lying ground of the site and 
provide an attractive setting to 
housing. At times of low rainfall, 
basins would provide additional 
informal open space. A network of 
wide gentle swales would provide 
additional drainage and habitat. 

The network of treed streets would 
provide a number of green routes 
connecting the existing movement 
routes surrounding the site (roads, 
footways and PROWs). Cycllng 
would be on the relatively quiet 
residential streets and on routes 
through the open spaces.

Residential amenity 
protected through 
creating planted and 
SUDS buffer and 
turning gable ends 
of proposed housing 
towards existing 
development.

Kick about area
O

LD
 R

EA
D

IN
G

 R
D

DEFINITIVE RIGHTS OF WAY

6m easement for gas main 
indicated by purple lines. 
Roads and open space 
overlay this service route.

Appendix C

P
age 39



Appendix D

P
age 40



Landscape Capacity Assessment for Sites on the Edge of the Larger Villages in South Oxfordshire 234 

KIRKHAM LANDSCAPE PLANNING LTD / THE TERRA FIRMA CONSULTANCY LTD   FINAL DRAFT MAY 2014 
SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Figure CRO 2.2: Recommended site area and Green Infrastructure 

Appendix E

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

APPLICATION NO. P16/S3709/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE Full application
REGISTERED 29.11.2016
PARISH Wallingford
WARD MEMBER(S) Elaine Hornsby

Imran Lokhon
APPLICANT Soha Housing Ltd
SITE Shakespeare House, Clapcot Way, Wallingford, 

OX10 8HS
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing building, erection of ten 

dwellings, new access, parking and landscaping.
AMENDMENTS None
OFFICER Paul Bowers

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is referred to planning committee because the views of Wallingford 

Town Council differ from the officer’s recommendation. 

1.2 The site lies in a predominantly residential area in the centre of Wallingford. It houses 
the former youth centre, a single storey building, which has not been used for a 
number of years and is in a poor state of repair. A Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) lies 
to the rear of the buildings but the surface is uneven and it is not capable of safe use. 
A footpath runs along the rear of the site.

1.3 Outline planning permission was granted in 2015 under application reference 
P14/S0309/O for the demolition of the existing buildings and structures on site and the 
provision of a housing development of at least 7 units. The only element of the 
development that was fixed and for consideration was the access which was 
considered acceptable. No reserved matters applications have been submitted and 
the outline permission runs until the 21 April 2018. 

1.4 A plan identifying the site can be found at Appendix 1 to this report.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This applications seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing 

buildings and erection of ten dwellings with associated amenity space and parking. 

The housing will take the form of a terrace of three and a semi- detached pair of two 
storey dwellings running along the frontage with the road. The remaining five units 
comprise a further terrace of three and a semi-detached pair running north to south at a 
90 degree angle to the street frontage properties. Access is in the same location as the 
2014 outline planning permission. 

2.2 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application can be found at Appendix 
2 to this report. All the plans and representations can be viewed on the council’s 
website www.southoxon.gov.uk under the planning application reference number.

Page 43

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Wallingford Town Council – Recommend that planning permission is refused for the 

folliwing reasons;
- Overlooking of Westgate House.
- Loss of privacy of daylight for neighbouring properties.
- Loss of on street parking.
- Concerns about the site access. 

Neighbour Representations - 10 x letters of objection covering the following issues;
- The number of houses exceed 7 as per the previous outline permission. 
- Highway safety concerns about extra traffic on the street.
- Inadequate visitor parking.
- Prefer mix of affordable and private housing.
- Over development of the site. 
- Proximity of the access to the junction. 
- Want to see the houses on the oppsite side of the site and access moved in line 

with number 31 Clapcot Way.
- Overlooking of 31 Clapcot Way.
- Concern about the number, position and height of the buildings along the 

boundary 31 Clapcot Way.
- Position of parking and bins store next 31 Clapcot Way.

Oxfordshire County Council Single Response - No objection on highway safety 
grounds and recommend a series of conditions relating to the access, visibility splays 
and parking arrangements.

Countryside Officer - No objection. 

Drainage Engineer - No objection subject to conditions relating to details of the surface 
water and foul drainage to be submitted to the council for approval.

Housing Development - No objection

Leisure – Object to the loss of the MUGA but this can be offset with a legal agreement 
seeking contribitions as per the previous outline permission. 

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P14/S2618/O - Approved (21/04/2015)

Outline application (access not reserved) for demolition of the existing buildings and 
structures on site and the provision of a housing development of at least 7 units 
(including an affordable component) together with access to the site and associated 
landscaping, parking and boundary treatment.

P09/W0822/CC - Approved (16/06/2010)
Replacement building to provide youth centre, children's centre and ancillary youth 
services office accommodation.  

P08/W0912/CC – Withdrawn (03/02/2009)
Demolition of existing single storey youth centre building and erection of new two storey 
building.

P08/W0753/O – Withdrawn (05/09/2008)
Erection of four dwellings with access.

Page 44

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S2618/O
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P09/W0822/CC
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P08/W0912/CC
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P08/W0753/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 policies
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSI1  -  Infrastructure provision
CSQ3  -  Design
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy
CSWAL1  -  The Strategy for Wallingford

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
CF1  -  Protection of recreational or essential community facilities
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016

5.2 Paragraph 216 of the NPPF allows for weight to be given to relevant policies in 
emerging plans, unless other material considerations indicate otherwise, and only 
subject to the stage of preparation of the plan, the extent of unresolved objections and 
the degree of consistency of the relevant emerging policies with the NPPF.

Wallingford Town Council are working towards the adoption of a neighbourhood plan. 
The neighbourhood plan has limited weight at this stage.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The issues to consider in relation to this proposal are;

 The principle of development.
 Whether the proposal accords with the criteria of Policy H4. 
 Plot coverage and garden size.
 Impact on the amenities of the occupants of nearby properties. 
 Impact on highway safety. 
 Affordable housing.
 Loss of the MUGA
 Community Infrastructure Levy. 

6.2 The principle of development.

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local planning authority shall 
have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as material to the 
application, and to any other material considerations.

6.3 In the case of this application, the most relevant parts of the Development Plan are the 

Page 45



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 (SOCS) which was adopted in December 2012 
and the saved policies of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP). 

6.4 Development which is not in accordance with an up-to-date development plan should 
be refused unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

6.5 Policy CSWAL1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 (SOCS) permits infill 
development within the settlement and does not prescribe a limit to the size of the site.

Infill development is defined in the Appendix 1 of SOCS as; ‘The filling of a small gap in 
an otherwise built up frontage or on other sites within settlements where the site is 
closely surrounded by buildings’. 

6.6 Currently the council cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply and the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development, set out in Paragraph 14 of the 
NPPF, applies. This means that our core strategy housing policies, including SOCS 
Policy CSWAL1, are out of date and are given less weight in our decision making.

6.7 Paragraph 14 of the NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  

For decision-taking this means “approving development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay; and where the development plan is absent, silent or 
relevant policies are out-of-date, granting permission unless: – any adverse impacts of 
doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or – specific policies 
in this Framework indicate development should be restricted.”

6.8 In this case the site is contained within the town, it has a street frontage and is bounded 
on all four sides by buildings. In my view this is both compliant with Policy CSWAL1 and 
represents a sustainable form of development for which there is a presumption in 
favour of permitting. 

6.8i Policy CF1 of the Local Plan seeks to protect existing community facilities unless there 
is a suitable alternative provision made for the facility on a site elsewhere in the locality. 
The youth centre has been replaced by the new family centre off Wilding Road which is 
within easy walking distance of Clapcot Way. In addition planning permission has 
previously been granted that would have resulted in the loss of the facility and therefore 
the development is not objected to on the basis of the loss of the youth centre. 

6.9 Whether the proposal accords with the criteria of Policy H4 of SOLP. 

If a proposed housing development is acceptable in principle then the detail of the 
proposal must be assessed against the criteria of Policy H4 which deals with new 
housing.

6.10 Provision (i) of Policy H4 states ‘an important open space of public, environmental 
or ecological value is not lost, nor an important view spoilt.’ 

The site is a brownfield site, the former youth centre is a single storey building across 
much of the width of the site and is in a state of disrepair; it is not an important open 
space and has no particular ecological value.

6.11 Provision (ii) states ‘the design, height, scale and materials of the proposed 
development are in keeping with its surroundings.’ whilst Provision (iii) states that 

Page 46



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

the ‘character of the area in not adversely affected.’ 

Clapcot Way is made up of a mixture of terraced and semi-detached properties. To the 
east are the properties which front on to St. Nicholas Road which back on to the site 
and are two storey flats and to the rear beyond the footpath is a two storey residential 
care home. 
There is a clear mixture of type, design and size of buildings in the immediate locality. 
On the street frontage are a terrace and a pair of semis which in form are in keeping 
with the established patter of development along Clapcot Way. Whilst the design may 
differ from the other properties there is sufficient mixture in appearance that the new 
dwellings will add to the character of the area rather than detract from it.

Where the proposal differs from the surrounding development is that it is in depth 
extending back in to the plot forming a cul-de-sac. However when looked at in the wider 
context there are flats to the east, a care home to the south and residential properties 
on either side of Clapcot Way. In addition the character of the area also includes the 
existing single storey youth centre buildings and land. In my view the addition of a cul-
de-sac in this location will not cause any significant material harm to the character of 
the area given the wider mix of buildings and development. 

6.12 Provision iv) of Policy H4 states that there should be no overriding amenity or 
environmental or highway objections. 

In terms of amenity this refers to both the amenity space being provided for the 
occupants of the existing and new property and also the amenity of occupants of 
nearby properties. These issues are also covered by other policies within SOLP such 
as Policy D3 and T1 and they are considered separately as they are fundamental 
issues to this proposal. 

6.13 In respect of the element of provision iv) that relates to the environment there are no 
environmental issues that would justify resisting the proposal.

6.14 Plot coverage and garden size. 

Policy D3 of SOCS seeks to ensure that new dwellings should provide adequate private 
outdoor space. The amount of land to be used for garden or amenity space will be 
determined by the size of the dwelling and the character of surrounding development.

6.15 Condition 5 of the outline planning permission stated that the total number of dwellings 
shall not exceed 7. The condition was not imposed, as some of the objections suggest, 
because of either highway safety issues or that the site could not physically take 
additional units but rather because the description of the development on the 
application said it was seeking permission for ‘…at least 7 units’ but did not provide 
fixed proposals about how this would be achieved in that the layout shown as part of 
that application was illustrative. 

The council imposed the condition to avoid any ambiguity and to ensure that any 
subsequent reserved matters application tied up with the outline permission. It was also 
to ensure that there could be no implication that more dwellings could be accepted at a 
later date on the site because of the use of the term ‘at least’ in the development 
description. This was specifically to protect local amenities. 

6.16 This application is in full and includes all the details of siting, design scale and layout to 
enable the council to determine whether the proposed development of 10 units is 
acceptable. 

Page 47



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

6.17 To assist in making that assessment the South Oxfordshire Design Guide sets out the 
minimum amount of private amenity space for dwellings. For 3 bedroom properties and 
above they should be providing for at least 100 square metres, for 2 bedroom there 
should be 50 square metres and for 1 bedroom properties 35 square metres.

6.18 The dwellings all provide for meaningful and useable garden space. With the exception 
of Plot 1 which exceeds 100 square metres the remaining properties all slightly under 
provide in terms of garden space. However the amount that each are under providing is 
not significant in my view and, as can be seen on the layout plan, the garden areas do 
not appear cramped or overly small. 

In addition this issue needs to be looked at in the round and overall I conclude that in 
terms of the planning balance the slightly substandard garden areas does not outweigh 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development and the benefit that would be 
brought by permitting 10 affordable units in Wallingford. 

6.19 Impact on the amenities of the occupants of nearby properties. 

Impact on residential amenity is normally considered in terms of whether a 
development results in material harm by way of overlooking, loss of sunlight or being so 
large and close that it is considered oppressive and overbearing. 

6.20 The most affected property by the development is number 31 Clapcot Way to the east. 
That property will have Plot 1 sitting alongside it extending westward on the road 
frontage and Plots 6-10 abutting the western side boundary of the rear garden.

6.21 There will undoubtedly be an impact to number 31 from the development. The position 
of Plot 1 alongside has the least impact in my view. Whilst it is understandable that the 
occupants of number 31 are concerned about the position of the building, the parking 
and the bin store in such close proximity to 31 this is a side by side relationship which in 
entirely common in a street relationship. A condition is proposed which seeks to ensure 
that first floor side window does not directly overlooking the most private amenity area 
of the rear garden of number 31 by having it be obscure glazed. 

6.22 Plots 6-10 extend southward and the rear gardens of these properties bound the side of 
number 31. The rear walls of the properties exceed 10 metres from the shared 
boundary. There will be an impact from the height, mass and extent of buildings so 
close to the boundaries. In addition the first floor windows will overlook the rear half of 
the garden. This relationship however is the same as any property which sits at the 
junction of a road with properties on an adjacent road being positioned at a 90 degree 
angle. The overlooking will only be direct over the rear most portion of the garden. 
There is an existing outbuilding within the garden of 31 which will assist in mitigating 
some degree of overlooking back toward the house which is the private most area of a 
garden. Views toward the house will be oblique rather than direct. Although in this case 
I accept that is not how the current occupants use their garden the rear half of a garden 
carries less weight in the planning balance than the normal siting out area next to the 
house itself. 

6.23 The occupants of 31 Clapcot Way and the Town Council have requested that the 
development be ‘handed’ in that the layout would change so that the access runs along 
the boundary with number 31 and the rears of Plot 6-10 then face the western 
boundary toward the flats on St Nicholas Road. This has been considered but the 
window to window distance from the flats to Plot 6-10 would be below the minimum 
standard of 25 metres and result in direct overlooking in to first floor windows in the 

Page 48



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

flats. This would be more harmful than the impact caused by overlooking of the rear half 
of the garden of number 31 in my opinion.

6.24 There is also concern about noise and disturbance from the gardens of Plot 6-10 to the 
occupants of number 31. In this respect I have to consider the development in the 
context of the lawful use of the existing site which as youth centre with a MUGA would 
have created a degree of noise and disturbance which in my opinion is comparable if 
not greater than would be created by the proposed gardens. 

6.25 Objection has also been received from the care home on the basis of overlooking. 
However the only window at first floor level serves a stair well and a condition is 
proposed to ensure that this is obscure glazed. 

6.26 There is clearly a neighbour impact particularly to number 31 Clapcot Way. In my view 
when this harm is weighed in the planning balance against the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development and considering this is a development for 100% affordable 
housing I conclude that the degree of harm does not significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits the development will bring. 

6.27 Impact on highway safety. 

With respect to highway safety matters the advice from Central Government set out in 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is as follows:

Development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of the development are severe. 

The term severe is locally interpreted as situations, which have a high impact, likely to 
result in loss of life, or a higher possibility of occurrence with a lower impact. 

6.28 The 2015 outline planning permission included only one fixed element to the proposal; 
the access. This was considered acceptable in relation to a scheme for 7 units. This 
proposed development includes the access in the same position to that which was 
approved in 2015 but for three additional properties.

6.29 There are concerns locally about the position of the access relative to the junction of 
Clapcot Way with St. Nicholas Road and the vision splays that are possible at the new 
access. 

6.30 The Highway Authority consider that in terms of the location of the access relative to 
the junction, the likely speeds of vehicles coming from the west toward the junction and 
vehicles coming from the junction, that the vision splays are adequate. In addition the 
difference in vehicle movements from 3 additional dwellings over and above what has 
been approved does not amount to severe harm.

6.31 Affordable Housing.

The threshold of the number of units for triggering the provision of affordable housing is 
11 units. This development seeks permission for 10 and as such it would not normally 
require the provision of affordable housing. However in this case the applicant is SOHA, 
a registered social land lord and partner to the district council and they are proposing 
the development be 100% affordable housing. 

The threshold for securing this through a section 106 agreement is also 11 units and 
therefore there is no mechanism that will allow the council to control this. However, this 

Page 49



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

development stands on its own and in my view would be acceptable without the 
affordable housing being added to the planning balance. 

Loss of the MUGA.

At the rear of the site is an existing MUGA. It is not in use at the moment and has not 
been used for a considerable amount of time. The outline permission in 2015 was 
subject to a section 106 agreement that sought a financial contribution from the 
developer toward the maintenance of a MUGA in the locality to offset the loss. 

Since 2015 the council has adopted the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). When a 
charging authority (the council) introduces the levy, section 106 requirements should be 
scaled back to those matters that are directly related to a specific site, and are not set 
out in a Regulation 123 list.

A Regulation 123 list sets out those things which are to be funded through CIL. and 
Regulation 123 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
restricts the use of planning obligations for infrastructure that will be funded in whole or 
in part by CIL. The council’s 123 list sets out that infrastructure for recreation, sports 
and leisure facilities other than those for site specific requirements (i.e. sites that would 
generate a need for such infrastructure) can only be secured through CIL and not 
Section 106 agreements as was the case in 2015. This application is not therefore 
subject to a section 106 agreement in the same way as the previous outline permission 
was as this is no longer possible following the adoption of CIL.

Community Infrastructure Levy. 

The council’s CIL charging schedule has been adopted. CIL is a planning charge that 
local authorities can implement to help deliver infrastructure and to support the 
development of their area, and is primarily calculated on the increase in footprint 
created as a result of the development. 

In this case CIL is liable as the proposal involves the creation of a new dwellings and 
incurs an amount of £134,784.00. As the development provides affordable housing the 
applicants are able to apply for a social housing exemption. This has not been applied 
for so far and can be applied for following the grant of planning permission but prior to 
the commencement of development. 

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The proposal will create 10 new dwellings in a sustainable location and accords with 

paragraph 14 of the NPPF which sets out the presumption favour of sustainable 
development. 

Whilst it is accepted that there will be an impact to the amenities of adjoining properties 
– particularly number 31 Clapcot Way and to the overall character of the area, the 
resulting harm is not significant and does out outweigh the benefit of providing 10 new 
homes whether they are affordable or not. The site affords for adequate levels of 
parking and garden space. 

Overall the proposal accords with development plan polices.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

Page 50



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 29 March 2017

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans. 
3. Schedule of materials.
4. Withdrawal of permitted development (Part 1 Class A) - no extensions etc.
5. Withdrawal of permitted development (Part 1 Class E) - no buildings etc.
6. New vehicular access.
7. Close existing access (a).
8. Vision splay dimensions. 
9. Roads and footpaths prior to occupation.
10. Plan of car parking provision (specified number of spaces).
11. Construction traffic management.
12. No surface water drainage to highway.
13. Surface water drainage works (details required). 
14. Foul drainage works (details required).
15. Obscure glazing.

Author:         Paul Bowers
E-mail :         paul.bowers@southandvale.gov.uk
Contact No:  01235 540546

Page 51

mailto:paul.bowers@southandvale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



0 10 20 30 5040 100

Shakespeare House

Site location plan P01

1:1250@A4

July 2016

2016034

Tennis Courts

28

34

18

31

17

2

36 32

26

30

10

51.9m

CLAPCOT WAY

64

5
0

3
5

5
1

4
5

4
6

5
6

50

4
2

4
4

4
8

52.1m

2
3

52

50 54

Community Centre

Youth and
3
8

3
4

3
6

4
0

3
2

51.1m

S
T

 N
IC

H
O

L
A

S
 R

O
A

D

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

1
3

Westgate House

Clapcot Way, Wallingford

Appendix 1

Page 53

Agenda Item 9P16/S3709/FUL



Shakespeare House,

P02

2016034

Sept 2016

A1@1:200

Site plan

0 2 4 6 108 20

Clapcot Way, Wallingford

31

CLAPCOT WAY
35

50

2
3

3
2

S
T

 N
IC

H
O

L
A

S
 R

O
A

D

Westgate House

12
345

6

7

8

9

10

3b6p

3b6p

3b6p

2b4p 2b4p
2b4p

2b4p

2b4p

2b4p

3b6p

2233
4 4

1

1
5

5

6
7 6

7

8

8

9

9

1010VV

1.5 c/b fence 0.3 trellis
2.0 c/b fence

2
.0

 c
/b

 f
e
n
c
e

2
.0

 c
/b

 f
e
n
c
e

2
.0

 c
/b

 f
e
n
c
e

2
.0

 c
/b

 f
e
n
c
e

Appendix 2

P
age 54



THE SURVEY
ASSOCIATION

safety l management l advisory l services

P
age 55



0 1 2 3 54 10

Shakespeare House,

P03B

2016043

Oct 2016

A1@1:100

Plans and elevations - plots 1-5

Clapcot Way, Wallingford

ground floor plans

first floor plans

bath

bed 2bed 3

bed 1

st

bed 2

bed 1

bath

cyl

st

bed 2

bed 1

bath

cyl

kitchen dining

sitting

st

wc

diningdining

wc

st

bath

bed 1

bed 2bed 3

wc

st

cyl

kitchen

sitting

dining

st
st

wc

dining

cyl

bath

bed 1

bed 2

st

1
2 3 4

5

wc

st

front elevations - plots 1-5 rear elevations - plots 1-5

left side elevation - plot 1 right side elevation - plot 2

left side elevation - plot 3 right side elevation - plot 5

roofs:
redland mini-stonewold tiles 
Breckland Brown colour

black upvc rainwater goods

facing brick:
Winchester red multi stock

white upvc windows
coloured grp front doors

feature panels:
Melton grey stock bricks

rev B bathroom windows added plots 2,3&4 Nov 16

P
age 56



0 1 2 3 54 10

Shakespeare House,

P04B

2016043

Oct 2016

A1@1:100

Plans and elevations - plots 6-10

Clapcot Way, Wallingford

ground floor plans

first floor plansfirst floor plans

9
10

bath

bed 1

bed 2bed 3

wc

st

cyl

kitchen

sitting

dining

st

6

bath

bed 1

bed 2 bed 3

wc

st

cyl

kitchen

sitting

dining

st
st

wc

dining

cyl

bath

bed 1

bed 2

stst

bed 2

bed 1

bath

cyl

st

bed 2

bed 1

bath

cyl

st

wc

dining dining

wc

st

87

front elevations - plots 6-10 rear elevations - plots 6-10

left side elevation - plot 6 right side elevation - plot 8

left side elevation - plot 9 right side elevation - plot 10

roofs:
redland mini-stonewold tiles 
Breckland Brown colour

black upvc rainwater goods

facing brick:
Winchester red multi stock

white upvc windows
coloured grp front doors

feature panels:
Melton grey stock bricks

rev B windows added plots 7,8&9 Nov 16
rear elev plot 6 amended

P
age 57



0 2 4 6 108 20

Shakespeare House,

P05

2016043

Oct 2016

A2@1:200

Street elevations

Clapcot Way, Wallingford

section through site

Clapcot Way48-50 plot 5 plots 6-10

elevation along Clapcot Way

29 31 access 42-48 St Nicolas Roadplots 1-5

P
age 58



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

1

APPLICATION NO. P16/S3609/O
APPLICATION TYPE Outline
REGISTERED 31.10.2016
PARISH Didcot
WARD MEMBER(S) Alan Thompson

Margaret Turner
APPLICANT A R Payne, D R C Payne & J F Payne (Rockspring 

Barwood Didcot Limited)
SITE Land to the South of A4130, Didcot
PROPOSAL Outline planning permission for up to 166 dwellings, 

associated open space and infrastructure (as altered 
by amended plans received on 14 February 2017).

AMENDMENTS Revised development framework plan received
GRID REFERENCE 451033/190967
OFFICER Phil Moule

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to the planning committee as the officer’s recommendation 

conflicts with the views of Didcot Town Council. 

1.2 The application site is located on the western edge of Didcot between the A4130 to 
the north and the Great Western Park development to the south. Beyond the A4130 to 
the north is a railway line and beyond this is the site of the former Didcot A power 
station (which has a resolution to grant outline permission for a mixed use 
development subject to the signing of the S106 Agreement).

Immediately to the west of the site lies a narrow parcel of land separated from the 
application site by a ditch and a tall hedgerow. Adjacent to this strip of land are blocks 
of recently planted woodland. Beyond this to the west is a signalised junction on the 
A4130 that serves Great Western Park via Sir Frank Williams Avenue. Further to the 
west of Great Western Park is the site of the Valley Park development which has a 
resolution to grant outline permission for a development of up to 4,254 dwellings. To 
the east of the application site is an area of established woodland and an area of 
public open space and newly planted woodland.

A plan identifying the site can be found attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This is an outline application for a residential development of up to 166 homes with 

associated open space and infrastructure. The site access is to be considered as part 
of the outline application, with all other matters reserved. Access to the site is proposed 
to be from a new junction with the A4130. The application is a departure from the 
development plan and has been advertised accordingly. The illustrative Development 
Framework Plan is attached at Appendix 2 of this report.

Page 59

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S3609/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

2

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1

Didcot Town 
Council

Objection
 The vehicle access and egress point onto the A4130 is 

considered to be dangerous 
 Consideration should be given to creating an access point 

from the development onto Sir Frank Williams Way

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
- Highways

No objection subject to conditions
 The proposed access (and contingency access following 

the widening of the A4130) are sufficient to establish the 
principle of access in planning terms

 The vehicular impact along with the impact of predicted 
queue lengths has been assessed as part of the Transport 
Assessment

 A 13 metre wide strip of land on the site is required to be 
dedicated for the purposes of widening the A4130

 Financial contributions sought towards public transport 
improvements and bus stop infrastructure

 Consideration should be given to relocating the children’s 
play area to a more central area

 The layout should be adjusted so that all of claimed 
Footpath P can remain on its current line through the site

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
– Education

No objection
 The development would increase the demands placed on 

local infrastructure and services
 There is insufficient capacity at early education and 

childcare settings, primary, secondary and special schools 
in the area to meet the needs of the development

 Sufficient capacity for early years, primary, secondary and 
SEN will be provided through the new schools planned for 
Didcot which need to be funded through CIL contributions

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
– Property

No objection
 CIL funding would be required for any necessary mitigation 

to address the impact from this development
 No specific impact identified.

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
- Archaeology

No objection subject to conditions
 A programme of archaeological investigation will need to 

be undertaken ahead of any development

Countryside 
Officer

No objection subject to conditions
 The main habitats on the site (the majority of the grassland 

and the hedgerows) are of low ecological value and are 
widely distributed. 

 There are areas of wetter grassland and ditches which are 
of higher ecological value in the local context.

 No significant populations of protected species have been 
identified on the site although the hedgerows and ditches 
in the south western part of the site are of value to foraging 
bats.

 The proposal would lead to a loss of the majority of the 

Page 60



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

3

grassland, including the areas of more species rich 
grassland in the north eastern part of the site.

 Further thought will need to be given to avoiding impacts 
on the more species rich grassland habitats within the 
reserved matters application. 

 The reserved matters stage will need to demonstrate 
(through the use of biodiversity accounting) that the 
proposals can avoid a net loss in biodiversity overall 

Forestry Officer No objection
 All mature trees across the site are protected by a TPO
 The new access from the A4130 will result in a significant 

section of field hedgerow will need to be removed
 Reserved matters stage to include a well-designed 

landscaping scheme to enable many new trees across the 
site, tree lined highways and larger long lived trees.

Health – Air 
Quality

Amended Proposal - No objection subject to conditions
 Issues previously raised can be overcome if the 

development is set back a distance 39 metres from the 
kerbside of the A4130 

Original proposal – comments as follows:
 Submitted Air Quality Assessment needs to address 

impact of cumulative impact of other developments in the 
area and include sensitivity analysis

Health – 
Environmental 
Protection

No objection subject to condition
 M-EC Noise report does present a high level of noise in the 

area, however this can be mitigated by design, layout and 
materials such as fencing and glazing 

Housing 
Development

No objection
 Alternative mix for affordable units requested

Landscape 
Consultant 

No objections – comments as follows:
 The submitted LVIA is acceptable
 The application proposes dwellings within 40 metres of the 

A4130 which is closer than adjacent sites
 The location of the main public open space, including the 

play area, is located adjacent to the A4130 within an 
identified noise contour. The play area should be relocated 
beyond this contour.

 The location of the play area would not benefit from good 
levels of natural surveillance

 The central area of the site rises and any proposed 2.5 to 3 
storey buildings in this area will be prominent in the 
landscape

 Where possible rear gardens should not face onto the 
boundary of Great Western Park

Environment 
Agency

No objection subject to condition
 Development should be only be carried out in accordance 

with the approved Flood Risk Assessment with no build 
development of land raising to be within Flood Zones 2 and 

Page 61



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

4

3.

Thames Water No objection subject to condition
 A condition is requested to approve a drainage strategy 

prior to the commencement of development
 Drainage strategy to include points of connection to the 

public sewerage system as well as flows into proposed 
connection points

 Thames Water have no objection with regard to water 
infrastructure capacity.

CPRE (Rights 
of Way)

Comment as follows:
 Concern raised that the section of claimed (footpath) FP 

‘P’, linking FP5 to FP35 west of the application site is not 
shown and would be built over in several places

 It would seem feasible to rearrange the layout of the site to 
allow the western part of claimed FP ‘P’ to remain on its 
claimed line

Harwell 
Campus Bicycle 
Users Group

Objection:
 Object to another junction on the A4130 cycle path.
 Integrity of the A4130 cycle path is being eroded with 

junction to new housing
 The junction needs to be designed so that cyclists have 

priority over motor traffic on the development access road

Neighbours No comments received

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 No relevant recent history.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy
CSH1  -  Amount and distribution of housing
CSH2  -  Housing density
CSH3  -  Affordable housing
CSH4  -  Meeting housing needs
CSM1  -  Transport
CSM2  -  Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
CSDID3  - New housing at Didcot
CSDID4  -  Other proposals for Didcot
CSQ3  -  Design
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSG1   -  Green infrastructure
CSI1  -  Infrastructure provision

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
C9  -  Loss of landscape features

Page 62



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

5

D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D6  -  Community safety
D10  -  Waste Management
EP1  -  Prevention of polluting emissions
EP2  -  Noise and vibrations
EP4  -  Impact on water resources
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
EP7  -  Impact on ground water resources
EP8  -  Contaminated land
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
G5  -  Making the best use of land
R2  -  Provision of play areas on new housing development
R6  -  Public open space in new residential development
R8  -  Public rights-of-way
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.3 National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance
South Oxfordshire Design Guide (2016)

Environmental Impact Assessment
Screening opinion P16/S2529/SCR determined that an EIA is not required for this
development

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Principle of the development

6.1 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development 
plan currently comprises the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) and the saved 
policies of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP).

6.2 Didcot is identified as a Town within the SOCS. Policy CSS1 of the SOCS sets out the 
overall distribution strategy for the district and this includes focussing major new 
development at the growth point of Didcot so the town can play an enhanced role in 
providing jobs and services with improved transport connectivity. 

6.3 Policy CSDID3 of the SOCS allocates land to the north east of Didcot for 2,030 homes. 
In addition to this site allocation, the policy states that planning permission will be 
granted for housing on suitable infill or redevelopment sites.  The application site would 
border houses that form part of the Great Western Park development on its southern 
boundary, but would not border housing on its other boundaries. As such, the proposal 
would not constitute infill development. The development proposal would not therefore 
accord with the development plan.

6.4 In accordance with the Planning Act cited above and Para 12 of the NPPF, 
determination of the application requires an assessment against other material 
considerations. These include Para 49 of the NPPF. This specifies that relevant policies 
for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning 
authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites. Para.14 

Page 63



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

6

adds that where relevant policies are out of date, planning permission should be 
granted unless:    

- any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
taken as a whole; or specific policies in the Framework indicate 
development should be restricted

 
6.5 Based on the evidence in the SHMA and past delivery, the council has a housing land 

supply of 3.8 years (including the 20% buffer for under delivery). The council cannot 
therefore currently demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites. Of 
relevance to this position are a number of appeal decisions that have been allowed in 
the past two years1. In each case, the council’s housing land supply was discussed in 
detail at public inquiries and the Inspectors concluded that the council cannot 
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites. In accordance with the 
NPPF, the application should therefore be granted unless any harm that would ensue 
significantly and demonstrably outweighs the benefits.

Landscape impact
6.6 The application is supported by a landscape and visual impact assessment prepared by 

CSA Environmental. The site is not covered by any statutory or non-statutory 
designations for landscape character or quality and is subject to a number of urbanising 
influences including the A4130, railway line and Didcot Power Station. In addition to the 
vegetation along the boundaries, the site contains a number of landscape features 
including mature tree lines and hedgerows and a series of drainage ditches. The 
landscape quality and sensitivity of the site is assessed as being medium, with a 
reasonable ability to accommodate change.

6.7 The LVIA advises that the proposals offer the opportunity to sensitively develop the site 
whilst seeking to retain all of the important landscape features, providing strengthening 
to these features through the introduction of new planting, the careful distribution of 
open space and through the establishment of green corridors throughout the site. The 
proposed development will result in a change to the inherent character of the site as 
that is an inevitable consequence of developing green field land. However the 
landscape and visual effects arising from the development will be limited and localised.

6.8 Due to the nature of the surrounding topography, the proliferation of existing trees and 
vegetation in the local context, the presence of the key infrastructure routes to the north 
and the presence of the recently constructed housing to the south, there are no 
opportunities to view the site from the middle and long distance.

6.9 The LVIA concludes that there will be some close range views of the proposed 
development, however careful consideration of the layout and the inclusion of suitable 
landscaping will assist in reducing the visual impact on these views. Accordingly, 
development in line with the proposed development framework plan could be 
accommodated on the site without giving rise to any significant landscape or visual 
effects.

6.10 The Council’s Landscape Consultant has raised no objection to the proposed 
development on landscape grounds or the conclusions of the LVIA. In response to 
comments received from the Council’s Landscape Consultant, the amended 
development framework plan shows a widened landscape buffer in the north eastern 
corner of the site and the development is shown set back a distance of 47 metres.  The 

1 1 Land at Winterbrook, Wallingford (P15/S0191/FUL), Land North of Lower Icknield Way, Chinnor 
(P15/S0154/O), Land to the east of Newington Road, Stadhampton (P14/S4105/O) and High Street, 
Tetsworth (P14/S3524/O

Page 64



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

7

open space and play area have also been relocated away from the A4130 and outside 
of the noise contour.

Highways impact
6.11 The County Council, as the local highway authority, have not raised an objection to the 

application.  The application is in outline form with the matter of the site access to be 
considered as part of the current application. The access to the site is to be taken from 
the A4130 and the County Council have assessed this in the context of proposed 
alterations to the A4130 and local safety. 

Proposed site access arrangements
6.12 Two significant highway schemes are proposed in the vicinity of the proposed 

development which are the widening of the A4130 to the west of Didcot and the 
delivery of Science Bridge (a new bridge over the railway line to provide relief to Manor 
Bridge and support development and improve access in the Science Vale area). The 
County Council require a 13 metre wide strip of land to be safeguarded to enable the 
future widening of the A4130. This is acknowledged in the application proposal and the 
Development Framework includes a safeguarded highway buffer zone.

6.13 Two proposed site access junction drawing are submitted with the application. These 
are attached at Appendix 3A and 3B of this report. One (drawing no. 
22109_08_020_01 Rev A) shows the access coming from the A4130 on its current 
alignment should the development be implemented prior to the widening of the A4130. 
The second (drawing no. 22109_08_020_02) shows the access junction linking to a 
widened A4130. This demonstrates that the site access arrangements can allow for 
modification as and when the road widening works / capacity enhancement works are 
delivered.

6.14 The County Council have confirmed that these drawings are sufficient to establish the 
principle of access, in planning terms, from a highways perspective. A condition will be 
required to ensure the access is formed, laid out and constructed in accordance with 
the Local Highway Authorities specifications and all ancillary works undertaken prior to 
first occupation. The need to implement an access junction from a widened A4130 can 
be secured through a Section 278 Agreement and the S106 Agreement.

Impact on the local road network
6.15 The impact of the proposal on the road network is detailed in the submitted Transport 

Assessment and this has been assessed by the County Council. Queue lengths at six 
junctions in the vicinity of the application site have been assessed, these are:

- Junction 1: A4130/Basil Hill Road/Milton Road roundabout;
- Junction 2: A4130/B4493/Mendip Heights roundabout;
- Junction 3: A4130/Sir Frank Williams Avenue signalised junction;
- Junction 4: A4130/Ridgeway Industrial Access signalised junction;
- Junction 5: Valley Park Access roundabout; and
- Junction 6: Valley Park Access priority junction

6.16 The County Council have commented that there would be a small contribution to 
exceeded capacities at Junction 1, while the other junctions are within normal 
parameters. No objection from the County Council has been raised in relation to the 
impact the proposed development would have on the local road network.

6.17 To mitigate the impact of the proposed development, a financial contribution on £795 
per dwelling is to be secured towards public transport to serve the site as part of the 
Science Vale public transport strategy. A financial contribution of £89,648 is also to be 

Page 65



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

8

secured towards bus stop infrastructure to benefit residents of the proposed 
development. 

Public rights of way
6.18 The County Council and the CPRE Rights of Way requested that the site layout be 

amended so that claimed footpath FP ‘P’ can remain on its claimed line. This will 
ensure a continuous route between footpath 189/35 to the west and the continuation of 
claimed footpath FP ‘P’ to the east.  The applicant has agreed that claimed footpath FP 
‘P’ can remain on its claimed line and this is demonstrated on the amended 
Development Framework Plan. This can be secured via condition.

Ecological impact
6.19 The Council’s Countryside Officer has raised no objection to the application. They have 

commented that the main habitats on the site (the majority of the grassland and the 
hedgerows) are of low ecological value and are widely distributed. There are areas of 
wetter grassland and ditches which are of higher ecological value in the local context.

6.20 No significant populations of protected species have been identified on the site 
although the hedgerows and ditches in the south western part of the site are of value to 
foraging bats. The proposal would lead to a loss of the majority of the grassland, 
including the areas of more species rich grassland in the north eastern part of the site. 
Further thought will need to be given to avoiding impacts on the more species rich 
grassland habitats within the reserved matters application. The reserved matters stage 
will need to demonstrate (through the use of biodiversity accounting) that the proposals 
can avoid a net loss in biodiversity overall. The area of land immediately to the west of 
the application site within the applicants control can be used for the purposes of 
ecological mitigation and enhancement

Air quality
6.21 The application is supported by an air quality assessment. This demonstrates that 

following the implementation of the proposed development NO2 and PM10 
concentrations will remain below the NAQS air quality objectives at the application site 
and at existing residential receptors. Initial concerns were raised by the Council’s Air 
Quality Officer in relation to the submitted air quality assessment and how the results 
related to diffusion tube data from a nearby location.

6.22 To overcome this issue, the Air Quality Officer advised that new dwellings on the 
development should be set back a distance of 39 metres from the kerbside of the 
A4130. This takes account of the proposed future widening of the A4130. The applicant 
has agreed to this and the amended Development Framework Plan shows the new 
dwellings set back a distance of 47 metres.  To ensure this is carried forward into the 
reserved matters application, a condition is required to ensure any new dwellings are 
set back a minimum distance of 39 metres from the kerbside of the A4130 in its current 
alignment

Noise
6.23 The application is supported by a noise assessment to consider the impact of road 

noise from the A4130 on the proposed development. This demonstrates that existing 
sound levels in an area on the northern part of the site adjacent to the A4130 would 
exceed the recommend internal and external noise levels for new dwellings. A noise 
contour is demonstrated on the Development Framework Plan.

6.24 Mitigation measures to reduce sound levels to within the recommended guideline 
values are set out in the report. These comprise:

Page 66



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

9

 Careful orientation of dwellings with a line of sight to the A4130, with gardens 
located at facades facing away from the road;

 Installation of acoustically sound fencing around gardens with a line of sight to 
the road; and 

 Selection of glazing, acoustically attenuated ventilation and building fabric with a 
sufficient sound reduction index

6.25 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer is satisfied that the noise levels can be 
effectively mitigated by the measures proposed. The final elements will need to be 
presented in a detailed mitigation scheme which can be approved via condition.

Impact on trees
6.26 The Council’s Forestry Officer has raised no objection to the application. All of the 

mature trees growing across the site are protected by a tree preservation order as is 
the woodland growing next to the eastern boundary. To create the proposed access 
into the site from the A4130, a significant section of the field hedgerow will need to be 
removed. The Forestry Officer has no objection to this.

6.27 The Forestry Officer has advised that as part of the reserved matter application a well-
designed landscaping scheme and strategy will be essential. Many new trees should be 
introduced into the site. To soften the appearance of the development, space should be 
provided for tree lined roads along the main routes through the site. Larger long lived 
trees of a wide variety of species should be included to ensure a diverse and robust 
tree scape. Drainage, service routes and road layout should be considered as part of 
the landscape scheme to ensure proposed tree planting is not hindered. An 
arboricultural method statement will be required as part of the reserved matters 
application to show how existing trees will be protected during the construction phase.

Affordable housing
6.28 The application as submitted confirms that 40% of the dwellings to be provided would 

be affordable. Of this, 75% of the affordable provision would be rented and 25% would 
be shared ownership. This accords with Policy CSH3 of the Core Strategy. The 
Council’s Housing Officer has recommended that the affordable mix set out in the table 
below is provided. These are expressed as a percentage as the exact number of 
dwellings to be provided on the site will be determined through the reserved matters 
application (up to 166). The applicant has agreed to this mix, which is set out the draft 
S106 Agreement.

Affordable Housing 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed (5 
person)

3 bed (6 
person)

4 bed (7 
person)

Affordable Rent 
(75%) 

11.5% 46.2% 30.8% 7.7% 3.8%

Shared Ownership 
(25%)

0% 66.7% 33.3% 0% 0%

Market housing mix
6.29 The application should provide the mix of market homes set out in the table below. 

These are expressed as a percentage for the reason highlighted above. This mix 
accords to that recommended in the Oxfordshire SHMA (2014). This mix should be 
secured via condition to inform the reserved matters application.

Market Housing 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ bed

5.7% 26.7% 43.4% 24.2%

Page 67



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

10

Layout
6.30 The layout of the proposed development is to be the subject of a reserved matters 

application. However, a Development Framework Plan has been provided and this 
communicates the key design principles that a subsequent reserved matters application 
should reflect. Adequate provision is made for open space (2.9ha). The developable 
area at 4.1ha could provide up to 166 dwellings at a density of 40 dwellings per 
hectare. Careful consideration will need to be given to the density of development at 
the reserved matters stage which may affect the number of homes that could be 
delivered on the site. However, it is your officer’s view that up to 166 dwellings could 
potentially be delivered on the site. 

Archaeology
6.31 The County Council have raised no objection to the development on archaeological 

grounds. The site is located in an area of archaeological interest and conditions will be 
required to secure an Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation prior to the 
commencement of development, to be followed by a programme of archaeological 
mitigation.

Flood risk
6.32 The application is supported by a flood risk assessment. The whole of the site is 

located within Flood Zone 1 (least probability of flooding). A small area of land in Flood 
Zones 2 and 3 is located to the north east of the site, outside of the application 
boundary and adjacent to the A4130. The Development Framework Plan indicates that 
new housing would be located well away from the area of flood zone, with a 
Sustainable Urban Drainage feature to be located in the north-eastern corner of the 
site. The Environment Agency has raised on objection to application. They have 
requested a condition ensure the development is carried in accordance with the 
approved flood risk assessment and the mitigation measures set out within the 
assessment including that no development or land raising to be within Flood Zones 2 
and 3. 

Foul drainage
6.33 Thames Water have not raised an objection to the application. They have commented 

that with the information provided they have been unable to determine the waste water 
infrastructure needs of this application. Accordingly, they have requested that a 
'Grampian Style' condition be applied to any planning permission requiring a drainage 
strategy detailing any on and/or off site drainage works to be approved before 
commencement of development.

6.34 With regard to water infrastructure capacity, Thames Water have advised that they 
have no objection to the application.

Surface water drainage
6.35 As is now standard practice, a detailed scheme for the site would need to incorporate a 

Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS) compliant strategy to ensure that all surface water 
run-off is accommodated within the confines of the site and discharged in a controlled 
manner. The submitted Flood Risk Assessment demonstrates that a variety of SUDS 
measures could be implemented on the site. The final details of the surface water 
drainage strategy will need to be approved via a condition prior to the commencement 
of development.

CIL
6.36 The proposed development would be CIL liable at a charge of £85 per square metre 

(plus indexation). This would exclude the floor space of the affordable homes provide in 
the site as relief from the charge can be claimed against these dwellings. The money 

Page 68



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

11

collected can be pooled with contributions from other development sites to fund a wide 
range of off-site infrastructure to support growth, including schools, transport, 
community, leisure and health facilities.

S106 – heads of terms
6.37 A draft S106 Legal Agreement is being prepared to secure the following:

 delivery of the affordable housing (set out at Para 6.28)
 delivery of the on-site open space and locally equipped play area
 a contribution of £795 per dwelling towards public transport to serve the site as 

part of the Science Vale public transport strategy
 a contribution of £89,648 towards bus stop infrastructure (shelters, flags, poles 

and real time information displays) 
 Securing a 13 metre wide strip of land adjacent to the A4130 to be dedicated for 

the purposes of capacity improvements on the A4130
 Securing a site access to a widened A4130 if required
 A financial contribution of £1,240 towards the costs of monitoring the travel plan.
 a contribution of £170 per dwelling towards wheeled bins for each house
 a contribution of £107.80 per 10 dwellings towards street naming

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The proposed development does not relate to an allocated site in the SOCS and would 

not constitute infill development. The application therefore does not accord with the 
development plan. However, as set out at Para 6.4 of this report, in accordance with the 
NPPF as the Council cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing 
sites, planning permission should be granted unless any impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the 
policies in the Framework taken as a whole. 

7.2 Paragraph 14 of the NPPF contains a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. The NPPF identifies three mutually dependent dimensions to sustainable 
development: economic, social and environmental. 

7.3 Didcot is the focus for new development in the district so the town can play an 
enhanced role in providing jobs and services with improved transport connectivity. The 
application site would be located close to good public transport links serving the Great 
Western Park development and new bus stop facilities would be provided. The 
application site is in close proximity to the services and facilities offered in Didcot town 
centre and local employment opportunities. Additional housing at Didcot would also 
contribute towards supporting projected employment growth within the wider Science 
Vale area. The application would also provide needed affordable housing and 
contribute towards the supply of housing at Didcot where delivery have been slow to 
come forward over recent years.

74. It is your officer’s view that the proposal would constitute sustainable development 
offering social and economic benefits. With regard to harm, there are no technical 
objections to the application and the proposal would not have a harmful impact on 
landscape or highway grounds. The application has demonstrated that it would not 
impeded to County Council’s intention to widen the A4130 for capacity improvements. 
Consequently, the application is recommended for approval subject to conditions and a 
legal agreement to secure affordable housing and developer contributions.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION

Page 69



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

12

8.1 To delegate authority to grant planning permission to the head of planning 
subject to:

i) The prior completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure the affordable 
housing, other obligations and financial contributions listed in paragraphs 
6.28 and 6.37 of this report; and

ii) The following conditions:
1. Development not to commence until details of reserved matters 

(landscaping, appearance, layout and scale) have been submitted and 
approved.

2. Approved plans (relating to access).
3. Market housing mix to be in general conformity with strategic housing 

market assessment (SHMA) at 5.7% 1 bed, 26.7% 2 bed, 43.4% 3 bed and 
24.2% 4 bed units.

4. Sample materials to be agreed.
5. Landscaping scheme to be approved.
6. Landscape management scheme to be agreed.
7. Play space/equipment to be approved.
8. New vehicular access to be laid out and constructed in accordance local 

highway authority’s specification prior to occupation.
9. Vision splay details to be approved.
10. New estate roads: including all highways infrastructure to be provided 

prior to first occupation.
11. Parking and manoeuvring areas and car parking plan to be submitted 

and approved prior to commencement of development.
12. Public right of way shown on framework plan to be secured through the 

site.
13. Travel plan and travel information pack to be submitted and approved 

prior to first occupation.
14. Construction traffic management plan to be agreed.
15. The distance between the front elevation of any dwellings and the 

kerbside of the A4130 shall measure 39 metres.
16. Electric vehicle charging points to be provided.
17. A scheme for noise protection to be submitted and approved prior to 

commencement of development.
18. Construction method statement to be agreed.
19. Archaeological written scheme of investigation to be submitted an 

approved prior to commencement of development.
20. Staged programme of archaeological evaluation to be carried out.
21. Biodiversity enhancement strategy to be submitted an approved 

concurrent to reserved matters application.
22. Limit on hours of construction – 7:30am to 6pm Mondays to Fridays and 

8am to 1pm Saturdays.
23. Appropriate provisions for control of construction noise and dust.
24. Development to be carried out in accordance with approved flood risk 

assessment and mitigation measures detailed within.
25. Surface water drainage works, including site investigation information, to 

be submitted and approved prior to commencement of development.
26. Foul drainage strategy detailing any on/off site drainage works to be 

submitted an approved prior to commencement of development.

Author: Phil Moule
Telephone number: 01235 422600
Email: phil.moule@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 70



Page 71

Agenda Item 10P16/S3609/O

PHIMOU
Typewriter
Appendix 1

PHIMOU_1
Typewriter
Application site

PHIMOU_2
Arrow



P
age 72

PHIMOU_3
Typewriter
Appendix 2



MEC3
58.743

6

0

.

8

6

6

0

.

6

9

6

0

.

5

0

6

0

.

3

0

6

0

.

1

7

6

0

.

0

0

5

9

.

8

2

5

9

.

6

0

5

9

.

4

6

5

9

.

3

3

5

9

.

2

1

5

8

.

9

0

5

8

.

7

8

5

8

.

6

6

5

8

.

1

9

5

7

.

9

9

5

7

.

9

1

5

7

.

8

3

5

7

.

7

4

5

7

.

6

5

5

7

.

5

6

5

7

.

6

7

5

7

.

7

7

5

7

.

8

6

5

7

.

9

7

5

8

.

1

2

5

8

.

2

6

5

8

.

4

0

5

8

.

5

6

5

8

.

6

9

5

8

.

8

5

5

9

.

0

4

5

9

.

2

3

5

9

.

4

3

5

9

.

6

3

5

9

.

8

8

6

0

.

1

3

6

0

.

3

7

6

0

.

5

9

6

0

.

8

6

6

0

.

9

3

6

1

.

0

5

DATE:
CHK:DRN:

AMENDMENTS:REV:

A AMENDMENTS FOLLOWING LOCAL AUTHORITY

COMMENTS

PT AB
16.09.16

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

SHEET SIZE:REVISION:

DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

DRAWING NUMBER:

CLIENT:

Wellington House Leicester Road

Ibstock Leicestershire LE67 6HP

T: 01530 264 753

ibstock@m-ec.co.uk

www.m-ec.co.uk

STATUS:

PRELIMINARY

SCALE:

DATE:

ORDNANCE SURVEY © CROWN COPYRIGHT 2014. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

LICENCE  NUMBER 100022432.

P
r

i
n

t
e

d
:
2

1
.
1
0

.
2

0
1
6

F
i
l
e

 
L

o
c

a
t
i
o

n
:
 
T

:
\

M
-
E

C
 
J
o

b
 
B

o
o

k
\

2
2

1
0

9
\

d
r

a
w

i
n

g
s

\
0

8
 
s

e
r

i
e

s
-
t
r

a
n

s
p

o
r

t
\

2
2

1
0

9
_

0
8

_
0

2
0

_
0

1
a

 
r

t
l
 
g

a
.
d

w
g

DUNNOCK END

DIDCOT

OXFORDSHIRE

PRELIMINARY

RIGHT TURN LANE

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

ROCKSPRING

BARWOOD DIDCOT LTD

22109_08_020_01

A
A1

1:500

PT AB 04.08.16

N

P
age 73

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
58.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
58.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
58.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
57.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
57.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
57.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
57.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
57.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
57.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
60.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
60.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
60.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
60.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
59.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
59.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
59.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
59.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
58.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
58.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
58.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
58.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
58.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
58.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
58.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
58.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
58.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
58.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
58.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
58.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
58.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
58.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
58.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
58.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
59.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
59.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
59.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
59.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
59.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
59.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
59.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
59.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
59.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
59.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
60.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
59.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
59.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
60.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
60.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
59.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
60.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
60.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
60.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
60.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
60.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
60.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
60.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
61.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
60.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
60.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
60.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
60.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
59.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
59.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
59.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
58.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
58.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
57.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
57.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
58.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
58.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
58.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
58.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
58.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
59.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
59.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
59.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
59.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
58.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
59.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
59.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
59.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
59.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
59.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
59.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
59.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
59.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
59.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
59.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
58.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
58.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
58.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
58.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
58.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
58.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
58.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
58.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
57.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
57.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
57.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
58.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
59.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
59.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
58.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
58.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
57.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
58.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
58.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
58.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
58.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
58.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
58.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
60.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
59.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
59.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
59.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
59.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
58.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
59.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
59.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
59.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
60.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
60.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
62.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
64.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
65.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
69.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
70.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
70.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
70.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
70.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
68.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
68.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
68.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
68.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
66.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
65.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
65.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
65.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
63.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
63.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
62.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
61.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
61.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
62.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
62.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
59.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
59.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
58.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
59.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
58.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
59.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
59.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
59.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
59.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
61.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
63.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
65.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
67.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
68.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
68.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
68.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
67.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
68.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
65.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
65.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
65.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
65.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
65.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
66.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
64.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
63.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
63.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
62.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
61.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
60.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
60.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
61.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
60.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
58.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
69.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Tree Lvl:81.82m

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
%%C 0.70m

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Tree Lvl:71.61m

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
%%C 0.90m

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
Tree Lvl:76.97m

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
%%C 0.80m

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
Tree Lvl:79.19m

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
%%C 0.60m

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Tree Lvl:80.13m

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
%%C 0.90m

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
Tree Lvl:80.13m

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
%%C 0.50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Tree Lvl:79.61m

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
%%C 1.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Tree Lvl:79.93m

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
%%C 0.60m

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Tree Lvl:64.81m

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
%%C MG

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Tree Lvl:64.71m

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
%%C 0.30m

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
Tree Lvl:67.54m

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
%%C MG

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Tree Lvl:58.88m

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
%%C MG

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
Inv.Lvl:61.29m

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
%%C 0.05m

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Fence Lvl:59.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
A4130

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
59.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
59.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
59.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
59.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
57.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
57.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
57.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
57.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
57.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
57.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
58.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
58.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
58.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
58.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
58.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
58.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
58.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
57.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
58.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
58.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
56.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
58.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
58.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
57.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
58.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
57.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
58.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
58.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
58.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
59.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
59.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
59.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
58.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
59.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
58.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
58.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
58.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
58.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
58.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
58.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
58.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
58.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
58.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
58.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
58.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
59.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
58.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
58.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
58.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
58.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
59.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
59.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
59.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
58.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
59.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
59.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
59.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
59.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
58.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
58.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
57.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
59.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
58.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
Inv.Lvl:58.25m

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
%%C 0.50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Inv.Lvl:57.88m

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
%%C 0.50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Tree Lvl:73.32m

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
%%C 0.60m

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Tree Lvl:71.46m

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
%%C 0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
Stone Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
STW Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
Stone Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Wooden

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
Stone Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
58.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
EXISTING DITCH TO BE CULVERTED UNDER FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
2.4m X 160m JUNCTION VISIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
2.4m X 160m JUNCTION VISIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
NON PEDESTRIAN REFUGE WITH REFLECTIVE BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
NON PEDESTRIAN REFUGE WITH REFLECTIVE BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
3.0m WIDE FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
3.0m WIDE FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
NOTES: 1. DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.  DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.  2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT ENGINEERS, ARCHITECTS AND SPECIALIST DESIGN DRAWINGS AND DETAILS. 3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS NOTED ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL LEVELS ARE IN METRES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. 4. THIS DRAWING IS FOR STRATEGY PURPOSES ONLY AND THIS DRAWING IS FOR STRATEGY PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO BE  USED FOR CONSTRUCTION. 5. ATC 85th % speeds ATC 85th % speeds Eastbound - 47mph Westbound - 44mph

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
APPLICATION SITE BOUNDARY (APPROXIMATE LOCATION)

PHIMOU_4
Typewriter
Appendix 3A



MEC3
58.743

6

0

.

5

0

6

0

.

3

0

6

0

.

1

7

6

0

.

0

0

5

9

.

8

2

5

9

.

6

0

5

9

.

4

6

5

9

.

3

3

5

9

.

2

1

5

8

.

9

0

5

8

.

7

8

5

8

.

6

6

5

8

.

1

9

5

7

.

9

9

5

7

.

9

1

5

7

.

8

3

5

7

.

7

4

5

7

.

6

5

5

7

.

5

6

5

7

.

4

7

5

7

.

4

1

5

7

.

3

4

5

7

.

5

8

5

7

.

6

7

5

7

.

7

7

5

7

.

8

6

5

7

.

9

7

5

8

.

1

2

5

8

.

2

6

5

8

.

4

0

5

8

.

5

6

5

8

.

6

9

5

8

.

8

5

5

9

.

0

4

5

9

.

2

3

5

9

.

4

3

5

9

.

6

3

5

9

.

8

8

6

0

.

1

3

6

0

.

3

7

6

0

.

5

9

DATE:
CHK:DRN:

AMENDMENTS:REV:

A AMENDMENTS FOLLOWING LOCAL AUTHORITY

COMMENTS

PT AB
16.09.16

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

SHEET SIZE:REVISION:

DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

DRAWING NUMBER:

CLIENT:

Wellington House Leicester Road

Ibstock Leicestershire LE67 6HP

T: 01530 264 753

ibstock@m-ec.co.uk

www.m-ec.co.uk

STATUS:

PRELIMINARY

SCALE:

DATE:

ORDNANCE SURVEY © CROWN COPYRIGHT 2014. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

LICENCE  NUMBER 100022432.

P
r

i
n

t
e

d
:
2

4
.
1
0

.
2

0
1
6

F
i
l
e

 
L

o
c

a
t
i
o

n
:
 
T

:
\

M
-
E

C
 
J
o

b
 
B

o
o

k
\

2
2

1
0

9
\

d
r

a
w

i
n

g
s

\
0

8
 
s

e
r

i
e

s
-
t
r

a
n

s
p

o
r

t
\

2
2

1
0

9
_

0
8

_
0

2
0

_
0

2
 
b

u
s

 
l
a

n
e

s
.
d

w
g

DUNNOCK END

DIDCOT

OXFORDSHIRE

PRELIMINARY

RIGHT TURN LANE GA

FOLLOWING A4130 IMPROVEMENTS

ROCKSPRING

BARWOOD DIDCOT LTD

22109_08_020_02

A1

1:500

PT SP 12.10.16

N

P
age 74

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
Sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
58.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
58.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
58.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
57.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
57.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
57.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
57.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
57.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
57.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
57.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
57.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
57.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
57.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
57.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
57.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
57.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
57.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
60.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
60.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
60.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
59.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
59.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
59.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
59.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
58.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
58.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
58.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
58.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
58.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
58.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
58.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
58.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
58.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
58.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
58.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
58.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
58.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
58.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
58.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
58.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
59.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
59.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
59.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
59.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
59.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
59.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
59.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
59.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
59.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
59.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
60.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
59.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
59.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
60.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
60.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
59.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
60.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
60.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
60.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
60.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
60.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
60.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
59.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
59.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
59.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
58.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
58.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
57.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
57.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
58.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
58.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
58.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
58.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
58.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
59.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
59.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
59.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
59.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
58.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
59.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
59.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
59.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
59.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
59.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
59.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
59.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
59.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
59.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
59.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
59.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
59.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
59.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
59.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
58.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
58.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
58.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
58.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
58.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
58.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
58.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
58.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
57.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
57.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
57.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
59.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
58.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
58.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
57.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
57.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
58.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
59.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
59.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
58.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
58.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
57.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
58.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
58.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
58.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
58.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
58.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
58.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
60.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
60.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
60.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
60.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
59.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
59.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
59.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
59.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
58.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
59.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
59.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
59.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
60.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
60.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
62.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
64.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
65.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
67.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
67.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
68.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
68.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
68.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
68.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
66.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
65.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
65.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
65.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
65.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
65.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
63.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
63.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
63.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
62.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
62.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
61.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
61.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
62.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
62.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
62.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
59.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
59.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
58.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
59.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
58.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
59.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
59.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
59.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
59.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
61.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
63.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
65.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
67.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
68.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
68.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
68.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
67.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
68.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
65.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
65.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
65.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
65.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
65.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
66.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
64.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
63.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
63.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
62.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
61.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
60.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
60.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
61.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
60.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
58.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
69.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Tree Lvl:76.76m

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Tree Lvl:74.38m

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
%%C 0.90m

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
Tree Lvl:81.82m

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
%%C 0.70m

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
Tree Lvl:71.61m

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
%%C 0.90m

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
Tree Lvl:76.97m

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
%%C 0.80m

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
Tree Lvl:79.19m

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
%%C 0.60m

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
Tree Lvl:80.13m

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
%%C 0.90m

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
Tree Lvl:80.13m

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
%%C 0.50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Tree Lvl:79.61m

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
%%C 1.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
Tree Lvl:79.93m

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
%%C 0.60m

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Tree Lvl:64.81m

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
%%C MG

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Tree Lvl:64.71m

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
%%C 0.30m

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
Tree Lvl:67.54m

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
%%C MG

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
Tree Lvl:58.88m

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
%%C MG

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
Inv.Lvl:61.29m

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
%%C 0.05m

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
Fence Lvl:59.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
A4130

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
A4130

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
55.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
59.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
59.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
59.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
59.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
57.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
57.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
57.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
57.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
57.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
57.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
57.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
57.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
57.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
58.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
58.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
58.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
58.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
58.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
58.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
58.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
57.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
58.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
58.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
56.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
55.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
58.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
58.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
57.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
58.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
57.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
58.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
58.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
58.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
58.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
59.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
59.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
59.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
58.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
59.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
58.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
58.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
58.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
58.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
58.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
58.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
58.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
58.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
58.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
58.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
58.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
58.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
58.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
59.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
58.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
58.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
58.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
58.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
59.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
59.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
59.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
58.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
59.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
59.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
59.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
59.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
58.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
58.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
57.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
58.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
58.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
59.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
58.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
Inv.Lvl:58.25m

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
%%C 0.50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
Inv.Lvl:57.88m

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
%%C 0.50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
Tree Lvl:73.32m

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
%%C 0.60m

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
Tree Lvl:71.46m

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
%%C 0.40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
Stone Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
STW Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
Stone Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
Wooden

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
Stone Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
58.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
EXISTING DITCH TO BE CULVERTED UNDER FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
2.4m X 160m JUNCTION VISIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
2.4m X 160m JUNCTION VISIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
NON PEDESTRIAN REFUGE WITH REFLECTIVE BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
NON PEDESTRIAN REFUGE WITH REFLECTIVE BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
REALIGNED DRAINAGE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
4.0m BUS LANE 3.0m RUNNING LANE 3.0m MEDIAN/RIGHT TURN LANE 3.0m RUNNING LANE 4.0m BUS LANE 1.0m VERGE 4.0m FOOTWAY/CYCLEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
NOTES: 1. DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.  DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.  2. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT ENGINEERS, ARCHITECTS AND SPECIALIST DESIGN DRAWINGS AND DETAILS. 3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS NOTED ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL LEVELS ARE IN METRES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. 4. THIS DRAWING IS FOR STRATEGY PURPOSES ONLY AND THIS DRAWING IS FOR STRATEGY PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO BE  USED FOR CONSTRUCTION. 5. ATC 85th % speeds ATC 85th % speeds Eastbound - 47mph Westbound - 44mph

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
APPLICATION SITE BOUNDARY (APPROXIMATE LOCATION)

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
13m STANDOFF FROM EXISTING HIGHWAY BOUNDARY

PHIMOU_5
Typewriter
Appendix 3B



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

APPLICATION NO. P16/S3778/O
APPLICATION TYPE Outline
REGISTERED 21.11.2016
PARISH Shiplake
WARD MEMBERS Will Hall

Paul Harrison
APPLICANT North Oak Homes
SITE Land to the west of Ridgeways, New Road, Lower 

Shiplake, RG9 3LA
PROPOSAL Development of 4 residential units, all matters 

reserved except access (as amended by revised 
illustrative layout, street scene and vehicle tracking 
diagrams received on 25 January 2017).

AMENDMENTS As above
GRID REFERENCE 477156/179217
OFFICER Tom Wyatt

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to Committee as the Officers’ recommendations conflict 

with the views of the Parish Council.  

1.2 The application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A) is 
located on the south west edge of the village of Lower Shiplake.  The site does not lie 
within a designated area but a number of trees within the site have recently been 
protected through a Tree Preservation Order.  The site was previously subject to 
gravel extraction and has been subsequently infilled.  It is laid to grass and borders 
existing residential development to the north west and north east and fronts the 
unmade New Road to the south east whilst the site adjoins existing farmland to the 
south west.  

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks outline planning permission for the construction of four dwellings 

on the site.  The only matter for detailed consideration at this stage is the access into 
the site and therefore the layout and details of the scale and design of the dwellings are 
entirely indicative.  The proposed access would be directly from New Road through 
widening and upgrading the existing field access.   

2.2 A copy of the plans accompanying the application is attached as Appendix B.  Other 
documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s website, 
www.southoxon.gov.uk.  

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Shiplake Parish Council – Objects to both the original and amended plans on the 

following grounds: 
- Represents development on a greenfield site beyond the main settlement area
- Extends into the countryside to the detriment of the rural character and 

appearance of the area
- The density and form of the development would be out of keeping with the 

character of the area
- New Road is unsuitable to serve the development
- The development would be contrary to the Shiplake Villages Plan and 

Page 75

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S3778/O
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

premature in relation to a Neighbourhood Plan. 

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections subject to 
conditions regarding the construction of the access and provision of visibility splays.  

Countryside Officer - No objections subject to a condition to provide biodiversity 
enhancements on the site.  

Forestry Officer – No objections to the principle of four dwellings on the site. 

Contaminated Land Officer – Ground and gas contamination has been identified at the 
site and a condition is required to ensure that a remediation strategy is agreed. 

Drainage Consultant – Conditions should be imposed in relation to foul and surface 
water drainage details. 

Thames Water – No objections

Waste Management Officer – No objections

Neighbour representations – 50 letters of objection received to the original plans, and 
21 letters of objections received to the amended plans.  The grounds for objection are 
the following: 

- Development of a greenfield site not appropriate
- Impact on the open countryside 
- Overdevelopment of the site
- Increase in traffic
- Impact on pedestrian/highway safety on New Road
- Lack of local infrastructure to support the development
- Precedent for further development
- Loss of habitat
- Previous schemes for housing have been refused on the site
- Impact on trees
- Noise disturbance

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P98/S0885 - Refused (05/02/1999) - Refused on appeal (18/08/1999)

Dwelling and garage.  Access.

P85/S0541/O - Refused (06/11/1985)
Residential development.

P80/S0184 - Refused (19/05/1980) - Refused on appeal (24/11/1980)
Construction of a family house with flat for grandmother plus ancillary works and 
swimming pool. Access.  

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance 

5.2 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) policies: 
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSH1 – Amount and distribution of housing
CSH2 – Density

Page 76

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P98/S0885
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P85/S0541/O
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P80/S0184


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.3 South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) policies:
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Biodiversity
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D6  -  Community safety
D10  -  Waste Management
EP2 -  Noise and vibrations
EP8 - Contaminated land
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 South Oxfordshire Design Guide (SODG) 2016
Shiplake Villages Plan Report 2014

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main planning considerations in relation to this application are: 

1. The principle of development
2. The impact on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area
3. The impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
4. The impact on highway safety and convenience
5. The impact on trees and ecology
6. Other material considerations
7. Overall planning balance

6.2

The Principle of Development

The most recent planning application for a dwelling on the application site was refused 
in 1999 under application P98/S0885 for the following reason: 

That the development would be contrary to the general, environmental/countryside and 
housing policies of the approved Structure Plan for Oxfordshire, particularly policies G1, 
G2, G5, EN1, EN5 and H1 and the Council's adopted South Oxfordshire Local Plan, 
particularly policies G1, G5, C3, H5 and H6. The erection of a substantial dwelling on 
this site together with its associated residential curtilage would result in an undesirable 
extension of built development into the open countryside, which would be detrimental to 
the character and amenity of the area which lies within an Area of Great Landscape 
Value.

6.3 In assessing the current scheme against the council’s development plan policies for the 
supply of housing within the district the application would also fail as it does not 
represent infill housing development as defined under Policy CSR1 of the SOCS.  This 
Policy allows for infill housing on sites of up to 0.2ha with infill being defined as ‘the 
filling of a small gap in an otherwise built-up frontage or on other sites within 

Page 77



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

settlements where the site is closely surrounded by buildings.’  The scheme fails to 
meet this definition.  

6.4 However, the council cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply, and 
in this situation, the development plan policies concerned with the supply of housing 
have considerably less weight.  Paragraph 14 of the NPPF advises that development 
should be assessed in relation to the presumption in favour of development, and for 
decision taking this means granting permission unless any adverse impacts of doing so 
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the 
policies within the NPPF as a whole.  

6.5

6.6

In light of the above I consider that there has been a material change of circumstances 
since the previous planning decisions in respect of housing development on this land, 
namely the lack of a current 5 year housing land supply, and therefore the presumption 
in favour of sustainable development should be applied.  Furthermore, if the 
development could be regarded as infill development, Policy CSR1 advises that a 
0.2ha is equivalent to 5 or 6 dwellings.  Therefore, the four dwellings now proposed 
would not represent a disproportionate amount of new residential development 
compared to that envisaged to come forward under Policy CSR1 within the smaller 
villages, such as Lower Shiplake. 

I am aware that Shiplake intends to progress a Neighbourhood Plan, however, this is in 
its infancy and can be afforded no weight in the decision making process for this 
application.  The Shiplake Villages Plan Report 2014 outlines that housing development 
on greenfield land will be resisted.  However, this document has very limited weight in 
decision making and its aspirations in relation to housing development are not sufficient 
grounds to resist the application scheme.  

6.7

The Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Site and Surrounding Area

Policy H4 of the SOLP provides a list of criteria against which new housing 
development should be judged.  These include that the development should respect the 
design, height, scale and materials of the built form in the surroundings and that the 
character of the area is not adversely affected.  Policy CSQ3 of the SOCS seeks to 
ensure that development is of a high quality and inclusive design. 

6.8 Details of the layout, design and scale of the proposed four dwellings are reserved for 
later consideration, and therefore, the layout as indicated on the submitted plans is only 
indicative at this stage.  The site lies beyond the established residential built form of the 
village but is visually well related to existing housing to the north, east, and partially to 
the south.  The existing housing development in the vicinity is of low density being 
characterised by relatively large dwellings of varied design positioned within spacious 
plots; giving rise to a sylvan appearance and character.  

6.9 The density of the development would fall far below the minimum density requirements 
of Policy CSH2 of the SOCS, which is 25 dwellings per hectare (net).  However, the 
failure to make the most efficient use of the land in this case is appropriate having 
regard to the need for the development to respect the grain of the surrounding built 
form.  As well as being visually well related to existing housing development, the site 
also adjoins open countryside, and in this regard maintaining a low density of 
development across the site will enable the retention of the existing mature trees within 
the site and also allow for additional planting within the large plots created for each 
dwelling.  This will respect the landscape character of the site and its surroundings and 
respect the rural landscape setting of this part of the village in accordance with Policy 
C4 of the SOLP. 

Page 78



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

6.10

The Impact on the Amenity of Neighbouring Occupiers

Policy H4 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that new housing development does not 
adversely affect neighbouring amenity and Policy D4 of the SOLP states that 
development will not be permitted if it would unacceptably harm the amenities of 
neighbouring properties through loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight.  The application 
site adjoins neighbouring properties to the north and east.

6.11 The illustrative layout indicates that four dwellings can be accommodated on the site 
whilst retaining large garden areas and substantial gaps to the site boundaries.  In this 
regard there would be a substantial degree of spacing between the proposed dwellings 
and existing dwellings adjoining the site.  The development can clearly achieve the 
relevant amenity standards outlined within the SODG and in my view the detailed layout 
and design of the development can be provided without causing any material harm to 
the amenity of adjoining occupiers or the future occupiers of the development.   

6.12

The Impact on Highway Safety and Convenience

New Road is an unmade road linking Mill Lane and Crowsley Road.  It is apparent that 
the road is lightly trafficked and has high amenity value for pedestrians and cyclists.  
There are already several dwellings fronting New Road, and the addition of a further 
four dwellings along the road would not result in a material intensification of traffic along 
New Road.   Concerns have been expressed that if New Road is upgraded with a 
metalled surface it may become a rat run from the A4155.  However, I do not consider 
that there is a requirement for the road to be upgraded to facilitate this modest scale of 
additional development.  

6.13 The Highway Liaison Officer has commented in relation to the original scheme for 
seven dwellings and has raised no objections to the proposal on the basis that the 
proposal is unlikely to cause any significant adverse impact on the highway network.  
Clearly the impact from four dwellings would be further reduced.  

6.14 Although located on the edge of the village, the local services and amenities within the 
village, including the railway station, are easily accessible by foot and bicycle from the 
site.  Therefore, although residents are likely to use a private car for the majority of 
journeys the use of a car is not essential, and the application is relatively sustainable in 
transport terms.

6.15 The layout of the development is illustrative at this stage, however, it is clear that there 
would be sufficient space for parking and turning within the site to accommodate the 
needs of the development.  

6.16

The Impact on Trees and Ecology

There are mature trees around the boundaries of the site, which make a positive 
contribution to the local landscape and the landscape setting of this edge of the village.  
The majority of these trees have now been protected through a recent Tree 
Preservation Order and represent a significant constraint to development on the site 
having regard to Policy C9 of the SOLP, which states that any development that would 
cause the loss of landscape features will not be permitted where those features make 
an important contribution to the local scene.

6.17 The retention of the trees on the boundaries of the site is crucial to ensure that the 
development does not visually intrude into the adjacent open countryside in respect of 

Page 79



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

views from the west and also to help assimilate the development into the existing 
settlement pattern.  The illustrative layout shows that the trees have been taken into 
account and having regard to the low density of the proposed development it is 
apparent that a detailed scheme can be designed to ensure that there is no threat to 
the retention of the protected trees.  There would also be space for further landscaping 
within the site.  The Forestry Officer has raised no objections but opines that the 
dwellings should be reduced in size to achieve a sustainable relationship with the 
surrounding treescape. This will be a factor in assessing any subsequent reserved 
matters application.

6.18 Development plan policies, including Policy CSB1 of the SOCS and Policies C6 and C8 
of the SOLP seek to ensure that development does not have an adverse impact on 
protected wildlife species and that the biodiversity resource is maintained and 
enhanced.  There is no evidence of protected species on the site, and whilst the 
proposal would result in the loss of biodiversity resource on the site the Countryside 
Officer considers that this can be mitigated through the addition of biodiversity 
enhancement features on the site, including the provision of bird and bat boxes. 

6.19

Other Material Considerations

Policy EP8 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that any contaminated land is effectively 
treated as part of development proposals. It is apparent that there are contaminants on 
the site stemming from its previous use for gravel extraction and subsequent infill.  The 
Contaminated Land Officer has recommended a condition to ensure that a remediation 
strategy is agreed to remove the contaminants.   

6.20 There are no critical drainage issues identified in relation to the site and standard 
conditions are recommended in relation to surface water and foul drainage.  

6.21 The development is liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) at a rate of 
£156 per square metre and 15% of the CIL monies would go to Shiplake Parish Council 
for spending on local infrastructure.  CIL would be charged based on the floor area 
proposed under a subsequent reserved matters application.  

6.22

Overall Planning Balance

The three strands of sustainable development are set out at paragraph 7 of the 
NPPF as economic, social and environmental.  All these have been considered 
throughout the report and my conclusions against each of the strands is 
summarised below.  

6.23 The application proposal would conflict with policy CSR1 of the Core Strategy, which 
sets out the criteria for housing within larger villages.  However, the weight to be given 
to this conflict is reduced as this policy for the supply of housing is out of date due to 
the shortfall in the five-year supply of deliverable housing sites.  

6.24 Economic role
The Government has made clear its view that house building plays an important role in 
promoting economic growth.  In economic terms, the scheme would provide 
construction jobs and some local investment during its build out, as well as longer term 
expenditure in the local economy supporting the ongoing vibrancy of the village. I 
consider that moderate weight should be afforded to this benefit. 

6.25 Social role
The proposal would positively support the delivery of housing, by providing 4 houses 

Page 80



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

towards those required to meet the needs of present and future generations.  The 
houses would be in a sustainable location with accessible local services close by for 
new residents to use. Furthermore, the development can be provided without material 
harm to the amenity of existing residents.    

6.26

6.27

Environmental Role
In environmental terms, I consider that the provision of four dwellings on the site would 
respect the settlement pattern and landscape setting of this part of Lower Shiplake and 
would not, subject to reserved matters details, cause any detriment to the protected 
trees within the site.  

Taking into account the benefits of the development and weighing these against the 
harm, I consider that the adverse effects of the proposal would not significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
taken as a whole.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The application proposal does not accord with the relevant development plan policies in 

relation to the supply of housing.  However, having regard to the lack of a five year 
housing land supply these policies have considerably reduced weight.  In relation to 
other relevant development plan policies and the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development within the NPPF the adverse impact of the development would not 
significantly or demonstrably outweigh the benefits provided by the provision of 
additional housing on the site.  

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant outline planning permission subject to the following conditions: 

1. Commencement of development within three years or two years of the last 
reserved matter to be approved.

2. Applications for reserved matters approval for landscaping, scale, layout 
and appearance to be made within three years.

3. Development to be in accordance with the approved plans (in respect of 
access only).

4. Development to have a maximum gross internal floorspace of less than 
1000 square metres.

5. Samples of materials to be agreed prior to the commencement of the 
development.

6. Landscaping scheme, including hardsurfacing and boundary treatments, 
to be agreed prior to the commencement of the development.

7. External lighting scheme to be agreed prior to its installation.
8. Tree protection to be agreed prior to the commencement of the 

development.
9. Biodiversity mitigation and enhancement to be agreed prior to the 

commencement of the development.
10. Construction traffic management plan to be agreed prior to the 

commencement of the development.
11. Contaminated land investigation and remediation strategy to be agreed 

prior to the commencement of the development.
12. Existing access to be improved and laid out to the local highway 

authority’s specifications prior to the first occupation of the development.
13. Vision splays to be provided prior to the first occupation of the 

development and maintained.
14. No change or upgrading to the surface of New Road without agreement.
15. Surface water drainage to be agreed and provided prior to the first   

Page 81



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

occupation of the development.
16. Foul drainage to be agreed and provided prior to the first occupation of 

the development.

Author: Tom Wyatt
Contact no:  01235 422600
Email: planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 82



Appendix A

Page 83

Agenda Item 11P16/S3778/O



Schedule of Accommodation

Ref:
A
B
C
D

Type:
4 Bed house
5 Bed house
5 Bed house
5 Bed house

No.
1
1
1
1

Total = 4

NEW
 R

OAD

PINEWOOD

Li
ttl

e

B
lueberry

B
raedeneW

oodford

Tr
en

th
am

Old Court

M
ead

C
ollingw

ood

Chalcott

The White Lodge
Bira

s H
ou

se

Lytchett

Turnstones

29

So
lv

a

Briar

The Grey House

Little Tim
bers

The Coach House

A
sham

M
aydon H

ouse

C
ottage

19

The Felin

P
inew

ood

W
illow

brae 23

Cottage
Cottage

W
indrush

Starlings

T
he F

irs Field C
ottage

Cre
ss

well
 L

od
ge

Close

Redwood Park

B
room

field

Ridgways

Lothlorien

27

Brackendale

H
ouse

S
hepherds

Greenacres

H
aw

thorns

Fairfield

Greatfield

El Sub Sta

A

C

B

D

1

7

1

7

1

2

3

4

Existing gated field access
location to be retained and
new junction constructed
with 6m radii.
Existing hedgerow trimmed
back to accommodate
2.4x43m visibility splays.

Existing boundary trees and
vegetation retained and
enhanced as necessary

Existing boundary trees and
vegetation retained and
enhanced as necessary

Existing boundary trees and
vegetation retained and
enhanced as necessary

Limit of adopted
public highway

Bin
collection
point

C
R

O
W

S
LE

Y
 R

O
A

D

BASKERVILLE LANE

NEW ROAD

Existing trees to be removed

Existing trees retained

Indicative new landscaping

Parking allocation

Plot number

Key:

8

50

N

SCALE REVISIONS

- Initial issue. 03.11.16 PNH

A Road layout amended. 17.12.16 PNH

B Scheme reduced in overall numbers in acc with LA Comments. 17.01.17 PNH

1:100
1:200

0m
0m

1:250
1:500

0m
0m

1.0

5.0

2.0
5.0

5.0
10.0

3.0

15.0

4.0
15.0

10.0
20.0

5.0
10.0

25.0

6.0

15.0
30.0

7.0

35.0

8.0

20.0
40.0

10.0m
20.0m

50.0m

9.0

45.0
25.0m

RESPONSIBILITY IS NOT ACCEPTED FOR ERRORS MADE BY OTHERS IN SCALING FROM THIS DRAWING. ALL CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION SHOULD BE TAKEN FROM FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY. PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORKS, THE BUILDER IS TO CHECK AND/OR DETERMINE ALL CONSTRUCTION DETAILS,INCLUDING CHECKING EXISTING SITE LEVELS AND DIMENSIONS. THE DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER PROJECT DRAWINGS, CONSTRUCTION NOTES AND/OR PROJECT SPECIFICATION. ALL DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE REPORTED IMMEDIATELY. THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF CADSQUARE MIDLANDS LTD AND MUST NOT BE USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT CADSQUARE MIDLANDS LTD WRITTEN CONSENT

Cadsquare Midlands Ltd
The Stables
Woodbury Lane
Norton
Worcestershire
WR5 2PT
t: 01905 761580
f: 01905 764051
www.cadsquaremidlands.co.uk

S
Q

U
A
R

E

Architecture

Planning

Engineering

NORTH OAK HOMES LAND ADJOINING RIDGWAYS
NEW ROAD
LOWER SHIPLAKE
OXFORDSHIRE

ILLUSTRATIVE LAYOUT 16-005/02 B

NOV 2016

1:500 @ A1PLANNING

Appendix B

Page 84



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

APPLICATION NO. P16/S3471/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE Full Application
REGISTERED 18.10.2016
PARISH Chinnor
WARD MEMBERS Ian White

Lynn Lloyd
APPLICANT M.A.Daly Building Contractors
SITE Land at 67 Lower Icknield Way, Chinnor, OX39 4EA
PROPOSAL Erection of two detached dwellings with access, 

parking and amenity space (as amended by 
drawings to omit the attached garages to each plot)

AMENDMENTS As above
GRID REFERENCE 475809/201631
OFFICER Tom Wyatt

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee as the officers’ recommendations 

conflict with the views of the Parish Council.  

1.2 The application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A) 
previously formed part of the former rear garden of 67 Lower Icknield Way, a road 
which comprises largely of linear residential development extending out eastwards 
from the village centre.  Planning permission has already been granted for two 
dwellings within the original curtilage of the property and one of these dwellings has 
now been constructed.  The site does not lie within any designated area of land.  

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks planning permission for the construction of two detached three 

bed dwellings to be sited on the part of the site where a single detached four bed 
dwelling and detached garage has already been permitted.  A copy of the plans 
accompanying the application is attached as Appendix B.  Other documentation 
associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s website, 
www.southoxon.gov.uk.  

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1

3.2

3.3

Chinnor Parish Council – Objects due to the overdevelopment of the site, 
unneighbourly development and access.  

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections subject to 
conditions relating to the construction of the access, provision of turning and parking 
areas and a construction traffic management plan. 

Neighbours – Two letters of objection received raising the following concerns: 
- Plans have not changed since the previous refusal on the site.  
- Overdevelopment of the site
- Impact on neighbouring amenity in relation to loss of outlook and privacy
- Cumulative impact of development within the area

Page 85

Agenda Item 12

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S3471/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P15/S2983/FUL - Refused (21/04/2016)

Erection of two detached dwellings with access, parking and amenity space. 

This application was refused for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed development, due to its layout and scale, would represent a cramped 
form of development resulting in an overdevelopment of the site that would detract from 
the spacious character and appearance of the site and its surroundings. As such the 
proposal would be contrary to Policy CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and 
Policies G2, D1 and H4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 and guidance 
contained within the South Oxfordshire Design Guide and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

2. The proposed development would result in a total net gain of three dwellings on land 
originally forming the curtilage of 67 Lower Icknield Way. The application fails to secure 
affordable housing contrary to Policy CSH3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, 
and insufficient information has been submitted to justify a departure from the 
requirements of this Policy.

A copy of the site plan associated with this application is attached as Appendix C. 

P15/S0490/FUL - Approved (23/04/2015)
Erection of two detached dwellings with access, parking and amenity space.  
N.B. This scheme is for two dwellings to the rear of the neighbouring property, 69 
Lower Icknield Way

P14/S3303/RM - Approved (15/12/2014)
Reserved Matters application (appearance, scale and landscaping), following Outline 
permission P14/S0098/O for the erection of two detached two-storey dwellings with 
garaging, parking, access and amenity space.

P14/S0098/O - Approved (29/07/2014)
Erection of two detached two-storey dwellings with garaging, parking, access and 
amenity space.(as amended by revised layout drawing 1507 01b accompanying agent's 
letter dated 19 March 2014)

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance

5.2 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) policies:
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages

5.3 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP) policies:
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D6  -  Community safety
D10 - Waste management
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development

Page 86

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/S2983/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/S0490/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S3303/RM
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S0098/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG)
Emerging Chinnor Neighbourhood Plan

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main considerations in relation to this application proposal are: 

1. Impact on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area
2. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
3. Affordable housing provision
4. Other material considerations

6.2

The Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Site and Surrounding Area

The site lies within the built up area of Chinnor and planning permission has already 
been granted for a single dwelling on this part of the former garden area to 67 Lower 
Icknield Way.  As such the principle of development is acceptable in relation to Policy 
CSR1 of the SOCS.   

6.3 Amongst other matters Policy H4 of the SOLP requires that the design, scale, height 
and materials of development are in keeping with its surroundings and that the 
character of the area is not adversely affected.  The design of the dwellings is relatively 
consistent with the dwelling previously approved and are not excessive in scale or 
height.  The materials would also be consistent with the previous approval.  

6.4 The application site originally formed part of the deep garden relating to 67 Lower 
Icknield Way.  The depth of this garden was consistent with the depth of the plots to the 
west and east.  However, planning permission has subsequently been granted and 
implemented for development within the rear gardens of neighbouring properties to the 
east comprising 69-77 Lower Icknield Way.  Copies of the site plans relating to these 
developments (applications P15/S0591/FUL and P15/S0490/FUL are attached as 
Appendix D.  As such backland development has become an established part of the 
grain of the surrounding built form.  However, the backland development that has been 
approved to date has enabled the retention of more generous gardens to the retained 
dwellings fronting Lower Icknield Way and more generous gaps between the backland 
development and the host property than would be the case in respect of the application 
scheme.

6.5 The approved development to the rear of 69 Lower Icknield Way retains a garden depth 
to no. 69 of 14 metres and a gap of 19 metres between the rear of the new dwelling 
and the rear elevation of no. 69.  The retained rear gardens to 71, 73 and 75 Lower 
Icknield Way would have a depth of at least 25 metres with the gap between the new 
dwellings and the rear of the existing dwellings being at least 30 metres.  In contrast 67 
Lower Icknield Way would have a retained rear garden depth of approximately 6 metres 
and there would be a separation of approximately 10 metres between the rear elevation 
of no. 67 and the closest proposed dwelling.  This represents a very similar gap 
compared to the approved scheme on the site.  In this regard the relationship between 
the rear of no. 67 and the dwelling on Plot 1a has already been found to be acceptable.  

6.6 The previous application for two dwellings on the site was refused due to being a 
cramped form of development out of keeping with the more spacious character and 
appearance of the surroundings.  In my view there are sufficient material physical 
differences between the two schemes and in relation to the wider policy context that 

Page 87



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

weigh in favour of the scheme in relation to the overall planning balance.  

6.7 The removal of the garages to the side of each of the dwellings has increased the gap 
between the rear of no. 67 and the side of Plot 1a to a distance consistent with the 
already approved scheme.  Compared to the previously refused scheme the gap 
between the north west elevation of Plot 1b and the dwelling already constructed under 
the previously approved scheme on this site would be increased by over 2 metres.  In 
my view the current scheme would result in a less cramped relationship between the 
proposed dwellings and the surrounding built form.  

6.8 The council cannot demonstrate a five year housing land supply.  Whilst development 
plan policies requiring good design are still afforded full weight, the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development now applies in that the council should only refuse a 
housing scheme where the adverse impact of the development significantly and 
demonstrably outweighs its benefits.  In this regard I consider that this amended 
scheme has addressed the main criticisms in relation to the layout of the previous 
scheme and the residual harm caused to the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area would not be sufficient to outweigh the benefit of providing an 
additional dwelling on the site.  

6.9

Impact on the Amenity of Neighbouring Occupiers

The previous scheme was not refused in relation to its impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers.  There have been no material changes to the relationship 
between the site and the neighbouring properties in the intervening period.

6.10 Despite its relatively close relationship with the rear of no. 67 the dwelling on Plot 1a 
would not cause any significant harm to the amenities of the occupiers of no. 67.  The 
dwelling would lie some 6 metres to the north of the boundary with no. 67.  Having 
regard to the orientation and design of the dwelling I do not consider that the 
development would result in any significant loss of light or outlook to the rear of no. 67 
and there would be no material loss of privacy as the first floor facing window from Plot 
1a relates to an ensuite and can be obscure glazed.  

6.11 The proposal would intensify the impact on the rear garden of no. 63 through additional 
noise and disturbance as a result of an additional dwelling and rear garden backing on 
to the shared boundary.  Such an impact is difficult to quantify and on balance I do not 
consider that the additional disturbance would materially harm the amenities of no. 63 
compared to the approved scheme on the site. The two storey elements of Plots 1a and 
1b would be over 10 metres from the shared boundary with no. 63 and the 
development would not result in any material loss of light or outlook from the rear 
garden of no. 63.  However, the development would double the number of bedroom 
windows looking directly towards the rear garden of no. 63 compared to the approved 
scheme.  Despite this I consider that the distance between the windows and the 
boundary and the screening along the boundary would prevent there being a severe 
loss of privacy to the neighbouring garden area.  

6.12 A separation distance of over 10 metres would exist between the north east elevations 
of Plots 1a and 1b and the boundary with 69 Lower Icknield Way and this is sufficient to 
guard against significant overlooking of the adjoining garden area particularly as the 
first floor windows facing this direction do not relate to habitable rooms.  The additional 
dwelling on the site would intensify the use of the access road, however, not to the 
extent that there would be a material loss of amenity to the occupiers of no. 69 or the 
future occupiers of the new dwellings to the rear of this property.  

Page 88



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

6.13 The rear garden depths proposed and the relationship with the surrounding dwellings 
accords with the requirements of the SODG.  Furthermore, the garden sizes of the 
proposed dwellings comfortably exceed the requirements of the SODG and would 
provide sufficient outdoor garden areas for the future occupiers of the dwellings.  

6.14

Affordable Housing Provision

The application site represents a smaller part of the application site for the two 
dwellings approved under application P14/S0098/O. In this regard the proposal would 
result in a net gain of three dwellings on the wider application site and as such 
provision for affordable housing should be made having regard to Policy CSH3 of the 
SOCS.  The lack of affordable housing provision was a refusal reason of the previous 
application.    

6.15 However, changes to the NPPG have been made since the previous refusal, which now 
means that affordable housing contributions and provision should not be sought from 
developments of 10-units or less, and which have a maximum combined gross 
floorspace of no more than 1,000 square metres (gross internal area).  In these 
circumstances there is no longer a requirement for the development to contribute 
towards affordable housing provision.  

6.16

6.17

6.18

Other Material Considerations

The proposal is acceptable in relation to access, parking and turning provision and the 
Highway Authority has raised no objections to the scheme.  There are no issues in 
relation to the loss of vegetation or ecological impacts.  

Chinnor is progressing a Neighbourhood Plan, which has been submitted to South 
Oxfordshire District Council and is currently out to consultation.  The Neighbourhood 
Plan has some limited weight in relation to the assessment of this application, however, 
there is no apparent inconsistency between the proposal and the Neighbourhood Plan 
policies.  

The development would be liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) at a 
rate of £156 per square metre and 15% of the CIL monies would go to Chinnor Parish 
Council for spending on local infrastructure.  

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The application proposal is in accordance with the relevant development plan policies 

and national planning policy as, on the planning balance and subject to conditions, the 
development would respect the character and appearance of the site and the 
surrounding area and would not cause any significant harm to the amenities of 
neighbouring occupiers.  In addition the proposal would not cause a severe impact in 
respect to highway safety and convenience.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Samples of materials to be agreed prior to the commencement of the 

development.
4. Proposed ground and finished floor levels to be agreed prior to the 

commencement of the development.
5. Landscaping scheme, including hardsurfacing and boundary treatments, 

Page 89



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

to be agreed prior to the commencement of the development.
6. Construction traffic management plan to be agreed prior to the 

commencement of the development.
7. Existing access to be improved and laid out to the local highway 

authority’s specifications prior to the first occupation of the development.
8. Parking and turning areas to be provided in accordance with the approved 

plans prior to the occupation of the development.
9. Obscure glazing to the south east facing first floor window of plot 1a.
10. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions, roof 

extensions and outbuildings.

Author: Tom Wyatt
Contact no:  01235 422600
Email: planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 90



Appendix A

Page 91

Agenda Item 12P16/S3471/FUL



Appendix B

P
age 92



P
age 93



P
age 94



P
age 95



P
age 96



Appendix C

P
age 97



Appendix D

P
age 98



P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

APPLICATION NO. P16/S3555/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE Full application
REGISTERED 25.10.2016
PARISH BIX
WARD MEMBERS David Nimmo-Smith

Charles Bailey
APPLICANT Miss Claire Randall
SITE Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road, Bix, RG9 6BY
PROPOSAL Variation of condition 2 and 5 of planning permission 

P14/S4069/FUL to replace approved plans and for 
the insertion of a clear glazed first floor window in 
north or south elevation (as amended by plans 
received on 21 January 2017 to omit windows on 
the south elevation and re-position roof light on 
north elevation).

AMENDMENTS As above 
GRID REFERENCE 473192/185170
OFFICER Tom Wyatt

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee as the officers’ recommendations 

conflict with the views of the Parish Council.  

1.2 The application site is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A.  Leys 
Stables has an extensive history of residential and equestrian development.  The site 
has permission for a replacement dwelling in lieu of stabling and a smaller dwelling 
previously on the site.  The site is located on the edge of the village and falls within 
the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks retrospective permission for a variation to the already approved 

dwelling to allow for additional window openings at first floor level on the north and 
south elevation of the dwelling.  The original plans for this current application, which are 
attached as Appendix C, indicated a new dormer window to a bedroom and a new 
casement window to a further bedroom on the south elevation of the dwelling, and a 
new rooflight to serve a bedroom on the north elevation of the dwelling.  The provision 
of these additional windows is in direct conflict of condition 5 of planning permission 
P14/S4069/FUL, which states: 

The proposed windows/rooflights positioned above ground floor level on the north and 
south elevations of the development hereby permitted shall either be obscure glazed 
and fixed shut non-opening windows or positioned so that the cill level is more than 1.7 
metres above the internal floor level. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking 
or re-enacting that Order) no further windows shall be inserted above ground floor level 
in the north and south elevations of the dwelling hereby permitted.

2.2 The provision of the additional windows as outlined above was not considered 
acceptable due to the loss of privacy caused to the neighbouring occupiers to the north 
and south.  As a result the scheme has been amended so that new window openings 
on the south elevation have been removed although the dormer is retained without an 

Page 101

Agenda Item 13

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S3555/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

opening, and the rooflight on the north elevation is indicated as having a cill height of at 
least 1.7 metres above the internal floor level of the associated room.

2.3 A copy of the amended plans accompanying the application is attached as Appendix 
B.  Other documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s 
website, www.southoxon.gov.uk.  

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Bix & Assendon Parish Council – Objects in order not to support and encourage 

applicants to flout planning process by building not in conformity with approved plan. 
The dormer is disproportionate in size as built – in particular with the blank panel.  

Neighbours – Five letters of objection received: 
- Loss of privacy 
- The blank dormer window is likely to be glazed in the future
- Overbearing to neighbouring properties
- Original plans and conditions should be enforced.  

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P14/S4069/FUL - Approved (18/05/2015)

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission P14/S1529/FUL

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a replacement 4 bed dwelling with 
integral double garage and associated amenity space provision.(As amended by 
drawings 13 357 03C and 13 357 13 to reduce the width of the garage and revise the 
roof design of the proposed dwelling).

A copy of the approved plans in relation to this application are attached as Appendix D. 

P14/S1529/FUL - Approved (04/09/2014)
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a replacement 4 bed dwelling with 
integral double garage and associated amenity space provision. (As amended by 
drawings 13/357/03 A; 13/357/04 A; and 13/357/04 B to reduce the size of the 
proposed replacement dwelling)

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance

5.2 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) policies:
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.3 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies:

C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
EP2  -  Adverse affect by noise or vibration
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
H12  -  Replacement dwelling

Page 102

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S4069/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S1529/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main planning considerations in relation to this application are: 

1. The impact on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area
2. The impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers

6.2

The Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Site and Surrounding Area

The only material differences between the dwelling as approved most recently under 
application P14/S4069/FUL and the current scheme are the provision of the rooflight 
over the garage in the north elevation and a dormer on the south elevation.  Having 
regard to the scale and siting of the dwelling both of these alterations are minor and do 
not result in any significant impact on the character and appearance of the site and its 
surroundings or the landscape qualities of the Chilterns AONB when compared to the 
impact from the dwelling as approved.  

6.3 The dormer structure complicates the roof form of the dwelling but would not extend 
above the ridge of the dwelling, and would only be visible in short range private views 
from neighbouring properties.  In light of this I consider that the overall design and scale 
of the dwelling remains acceptable having regard to relevant development plan policies, 
including Policies CSQ3 and CSEN1 of the SOCS and Policies G2, D1 and H4 of the 
SOLP.  

6.4

The Impact on the Amenity of Neighbouring Occupiers

The original plans were not acceptable as the bedroom openings proposed on the 
south elevation of the dwelling would have resulted in direct overlooking into the private 
garden area of Cross Leys to the south.  Furthermore the new rooflight in the north 
elevation would have resulted in overlooking towards Grey Lodge to the north.  As such 
the original scheme failed to comply with Policy D4 of the SOLP, which states that 
development will not be permitted if it would unacceptably harm the amenities of 
neighbouring properties through loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight.  

6.5 The amended plans have removed window openings from the south elevation apart 
from the bathroom window already approved.  The new rooflight on the north elevation 
is retained but will be a high level window (at least 1.7 metres above internal floor level) 
to protect the privacy of Grey Lodge.  In light of these amendments and the 
recommended conditions the proposal would not result in any additional harm to the 
amenity of adjoining occupiers in comparison to the already approved scheme.  

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The application proposal is in accordance with the relevant development plan policies 

and national planning policy as, subject to conditions, the development would respect 
the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area and would not 
cause any significant harm to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers.  

Page 103



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 

1. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
2. The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) level of the rooflight at first floor 

level in the north elevation to be at least 1.7 metres above the internal 
floor level of the associated room.

3. No further windows shall be inserted above ground floor level in the north 
and south elevations of the dwelling hereby permitted.

4. This permission varies Condition 2 and 5 of planning permission 
P14/S4069/FUL only and all other conditions attached to this permission 
remain in force.

Author: Tom Wyatt
Contact no:  01235 422600
Email: planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 104



Appendix A

Page 105

Agenda Item 13P16/S3555/FUL



Suggested position of boiler and flue, actual position
not determined by Potton. To be positioned in

S accordance with Part i of the Approved Building
Regulations Documents.

sp Suggested position of soil vent pipe, actual position
not determined by Potton.

Entrance door to be mobility compliant.

IWIDTHuHEIGHTI Size denotes in millimetres the structural opening size
in the timber frame for the windows or door.

AH Possible position of air source heat pump if required.

0 Protected stairway from 30mm. fire resisting
construction. Soffit to understairs cupboard to achieve
30mm. fire resistance.
Ground floor ceilings and all load bearing walls to
achieve mm. half hour fire resistance.

Garage ceiling to have half hour fire lining consisting
of 2 layers of 12.5mm plasterboard with all joiflut
staggered, tapped and filled.

WC to be vented by mechanical extract fan ducted to
outside air, capable of an extract rate of 6 litres per
second with a 15 minute over-run and linked to the
light switch.

® Guarding height to balcony to be 1100mm tall
construction to prevent 100mm sphere passing
through balusters and such that children may not
readily climb over (not by Potton(.

Half hour fire door.

Glazed half hour fire door not available from Potton

Garage door and frame no supplied by Potton. Fixing
detail above frame by client.

Q11S

c 25 02 16
Ptirrh height reduced in some areas, side lights to east MW

B 15.51,lt Utility parapet wall removed, Bed 4 dormer wideoed.

A Jan16 various Amendments as requested

. 04.12.15 Initial ‘Pottor’ version of’Langrirk’ drawings including kdlY
requested amendments.

Rev: Date Descriptisn; Drawn: Checked:

crent;
Mr N Randall
Site Address:

Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road
Bix, Oxfordshire
RG9 6BY
Property Type:

Bespoke 4 Bed Dwelling
Drawing Title:

Elevations #1
Job Number: Drawing Number; Revision:

15-114 3 D

Drawine Scale UNOI: 0 1 2 3 4
1:100@A3 E

t POTION
LY A KINGSPAN COMPANY

This document is the copyrinht ot Kingopan Timber Solutions Ltd. and is made available on
the enpress condition that it shall not be used in connection with the erection ol any building
or the production of any componenls for such a building unless the building to be erected or
the cnnrpsrents ore supplied by Ringopan Timber Solutions Ltd.

© Ringspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

______________

IIIIIIIlIIIII,’—J

SOUTH ELEVATION (Scale 1:100)

0
1- CD

Half hour self closing flush fire door.

Light-well

EAST ELEVATION (ScaIel:100)

5

Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd
Eltisley Road,
Great Gransden
Beds, SG19 3AR

Tel: 01767676400
Fax: 01767676444
E-mail: sales@potton.co.uk
Web: www.potton.co.ukAppendix B

P
age 106



Key.

Suggested position of boiler and flue, actual position

not determined by Potton. To be positioned in
accordance with Part i ofthe Approved Building
Regulations Documents.

Suggested position of soil vent pipe, actual position
not determined by Potton.

Entrance door to be mobility compliant.

Size denotes in millimetres the structural opening size
in the timber frame for the windows or door.

Possible position of air source heat pump if required.

Protected stairway from 30mm. fire resisting
construction. Soffit to understairs cupboard to achieve
30mm. fire resistance.
Ground floor ceilings and all load bearing walls to
achieve mm. half hour fire resistance.

Garage ceiling to have half hour fire lining consisting
of 2 layers of 12.5mm plasterboard with all joinst
staggered, tapped and filled.

wc to be vented by mechanical extract fan ducted to
outside air, capable ofan extract rate of 6 litres per
second with a 15 minute over-run and linked to the
light switch.

Guarding height to balcony to be 1100mm tall
construction to prevent 100mm sphere passing
through balusters and such that children may not
readily climb over (not by Potton).

Half hour fire door.

cE::s Glazed half hour fire door not available from Potton

Garage door and frame no supplied by Potton. Fixing
detail above frame by client.

D Half hour self closing flush fire door.

Light-well

Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd
Eltisley Road,
Great Gransden,
Beds, 5G19 3AR

Tel: 01767676400
Fax: 01767 676444
E-mail: sales@potton.co.uk
Web: www.potton.co.uk

This document is the copyright of Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd. and is made available on
the express condition that it shall not be used in connection with the erection of any building
or the production of any components for such a bailding unless the building to be erected or
the components are supplied by Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

ljsvP

I WIDTHxHEIGHT I

ASH

0

0

D HV

FIRST FLOOR
FIRST FLOOR INTERNALAREA: 127.21m2
FIRST FLOOR INTERNAL PERIMETER: 59.21m

C 25.02.16
side lightsto east

B 15.01.16 Utility parapet wall removed, Bed 4 dormer widened. kdAP

A Jan 16 various Amendments as requested kd.&

. 04.12.15 Initial Potton version of ‘Langrick’ drawings including kdh
requested amendments.

;;;- Date: Description: I0rn JChecked:

client:

Mr N Randall
Site Address:

Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road
Bix, Oxfordshire
RG9 6BY
Property Type:

Bespoke 4 Bed Dwelling
Drawing Title:

First Floor Plans
Job Number: Drawing Number: Revision:

15-114 2 D
Drawing Scale IUNOI: ; 2 3 4 5
1:100@A3 hit

r POTION
[_Jr A KINGSPAN COMPANY

IS Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

P
age 107



Suggested position of boiler and flue, actual position
not determined by Potton. To be positioned in
accordance with Part i of the Approved Building
Regulations Documents.

svP Suggested position of soil vent pipe, actual position
not determined by Patton.

Entrance door to be mobility compliant.

WEST ELEVATION (Scale 1:100)

fI:I:iIi1lll,I
liii 11111111

111111111111

liii 11111111

liii 11111111

111111111111

1111111111

I II 1111111 l
111111111111 l
iHliiiliiiiil’fc

111111 III cill height. “
11111111111

I
700mm

/ 111111 1111111
I

111111 1111111111

liIIIIIIIIIIIlllllllllll
11111111111 11111111111 II .- . ‘

1II1IIII11IIIlllIllIl1ll
lhIhIhIhIhI1l(IfInIhI 111111111

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIllllllllIll ‘,,f.—’ ‘t_r’.);

_______________

_r

____

H

Size denotes in millimetres the structural opening size
in the timber frame for the windows or door.

Possible position of air source heat pump if required.

Protected stairway from 30mm. fire resisting
construction. Soffit to understairs cupboard to achieve
30mm. fire resistance.
Ground floor ceilings and all load bearing walls to
achieve mm. half hour fire resistance.

Garage ceiling to have half hour fire lining consisting
of 2 layers of 12.5mm plasterboard with all joinst
staggered tapped and filled.

WC to be vented by mechanical extract fan ducted to
outside air, capable of an extract rate of 6 litres per
second with a 15 minute over-run and linked to the
light switch.

Q
Guarding height to balcony to be 1100mm tall
construction to prevent 100mm sphere passing
through balusters and such that children may not
readily climb over (not by Potton).

Half hour fire door.

Glazed half hour fire door not available from Potton

Garage door and frame no supplied by Potton. Fining
detail above frame by client.

C 25 nz Plinth height redoced in some areas, side lights to east MWelevatien French dears modified.

a 15.51.16 Utility parapet wall removed, Bed 4 dormer widened. kdl,

A Jan 16 Various Amendments as reqaested

. 04.12.15 Initial Potton’ version of ‘Langrick’ drawings including kd.&
requested amendments.

Rev: Date: Description: l0re checked:

Client:

Mr N Randall
Site Address.

Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road
Bix, Oxfordshire
RG9 6BY
Property Type:

Bespoke 4 Bed Dwelling
Drawing Title:

Elevation #2
Job Number: Drawing Number: Revision:

15-114 4 D

Drawing Scale ISNOI. o 1 2 3 4 5
1:100@A3 II

t POTION
LY A KINGSPAN COMPANY

This donvonest is the copyright of Kinuspon T:mber Solutions Ltd and is made available on
the enpress condition that it shall not be used :n connection with the erectine of any building
on the production of any components for such a building unless the building lobe erected or
the cvrnpvnents are supplied by Kirgspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

© Kingspaa Timber Solutions Ltd

IW1DTHnHE1GHTI

All 1111111
1111111111

/\ IlIllIlIllIlfIl

.Jt:I:1:ll:I:1:1:1::I:Il:l

tg

-

1111111111111111111111 I I I
1111111111111111 1111111111

________________________

lJ 111111111 111111111 111111
— z—.:.i’IlIlllllIIlIlIIlIllIIlIl

III
illlllllllllllllllllllll

‘liii’

IIItIIIIIIIIlIIIIIIIIIIIIIIItIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIiIiIIiIiIIiII

NORTH ELEVATION (Scale 1:100)

III 11111111 -

11111111
IIIIll/

-:

llllIIIIIIIllIIllIIIII
ZAlllllllIIIIIIIlIllIIIIII

/AlIlllllIIlIIIII 1111111111
All 111111111111111111111 IlY
lIIIllllllIIIIIIIIlIIIII

/
IlIIlIIlIllllIIllllIIl

11111111111 11111111111 I VA 11111111
IlIIllIIIllIIIlllIllIIIIIVJ

11 NIl

Ill
IlIIIfIIffIlIfIIIIl 4fl1

11111111111 1111111 III
11111111

_______________

:::::t

_____

lIIfIIIlItIIItIIItIIIIIIIIIIIIlIIIIlIIItItI [1I[1F!

0

S.

Half hour self closing flush fire door.

Light-well

03.01.17 HV

Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd
Eltisley Road,
Great Gransden,
Beds, 5019 3AR

Tel: 01767676400
Fax: 01767 676444
E-mail:sales@potton.co.uk
Web: www.potton.co.uk

P
age 108



Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd
Eltisley Road,
Great Gransden,
Beds, SG19 3AR

This document is the copyright of Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd, and is made available on

the express condition that it shall not be used in connection with the erection of any building

or the production of any components for such a building unless the building to be erected or

the components are supplied by Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

© Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

Checked:

Drawing Scale (UNO):

WIDTHxHEIGHT

Tel:   01767 676400
Fax:   01767 676444
E-mail: sales@potton.co.uk
Web:   www.potton.co.uk

C
Job Number:

15-114
Drawing Number:

Drawing Title:

Site Address:

Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road
Bix, Oxfordshire
RG9 6BY

Client:

Mr N Randall

Date:

04.12.15

Drawn:Rev:

.

Description:

Initial 'Potton' version of 'Langrick' drawings including
requested amendments.

.

Suggested position of boiler and flue, actual position
not determined by Potton. To be positioned in
accordance with Part 'J' of the Approved Building
Regulations Documents.

Bespoke 4 Bed Dwelling
Property Type:

0 1 2 3 4 5

SVP

ASHP

Revision:

E

B
O

I
L

E
R

B

F

GD

GF

Key.

Suggested position of soil vent pipe, actual position
not determined by Potton.

Entrance door to be mobility compliant.

Size denotes in millimetres the structural opening size
in the timber frame for the windows or door.

Possible position of air source heat pump if required.

Ground floor ceilings and all load bearing walls to
achieve min. half hour fire resistance.

Protected stairway from 30min. fire resisting
construction. Soffit to understairs cupboard to achieve
30min. fire resistance.

Garage ceiling to have half hour fire lining consisting
of 2 layers of 12.5mm plasterboard with all joinst
staggered, tapped and filled.

WC to be vented by mechanical extract fan ducted to
outside air, capable of an extract rate of 6 litres per
second with a 15 minute over-run and linked to the
light switch.

Guarding height to balcony to be 1100mm tall
construction to prevent 100mm sphere passing
through balusters and such that children may not
readily climb over (not by Potton).

Half hour fire door.

Garage door and frame no supplied by Potton. Fixing
detail above frame by client.

Half hour self closing flush fire door.

GC

P

kdb

LW Light-well

Jan 16A Various Amendments as requested .kdb

F* Glazed half hour fire door not available from Potton

15.01.16B Utility parapet wall removed, Bed 4 dormer widened. .kdb

25.02.16C Plinth height reduced in some areas, side lights to east
elevation French doors modified. .MW

B

SOUTH ELEVATION (Scale 1:100)

EAST ELEVATION (Scale1:100)

3

Elevations #1

1:100@A3

Appendix C

P
age 109



600x1050

8
0

0
x
1

3
5

0
1

6
0

0
x
1

9
3

0

1
2

0
0

x
1

0
5

0

SVP

En-suite

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 3

Bathroom

1
.
8

m
 
h

e
a

d
 
r
o

o
m

Bedroom 4

1.8m head room

1.8m head room

SVP

780x1400

780x1180

2x 660x1400

5
5

0
x
1

1
8

0

762

762

762

Landing

7
6

2

Future Balcony

7
6

2

A A

B
C

D

E

F

8
0

0
x
1

3
5

0

B

C

D

E

F

FD30

FD30

FD30

F
D

3
0

P

B

F

F

F

F

F

1200x1200

6
8

6

6
8

6

Cupboard

762

7
6

2

en-suite

7
8

0
x
1

1
8

0

F

FD30

F
D

3
0

F
D

3
0

SVP

1200x1200

2
3

0
0

x
1

0
2

0
 
M

A
X

2
3

0
0

x
1

0
2

0
 
M

A
X

Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd
Eltisley Road,
Great Gransden,
Beds, SG19 3AR

This document is the copyright of Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd, and is made available on

the express condition that it shall not be used in connection with the erection of any building

or the production of any components for such a building unless the building to be erected or

the components are supplied by Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

© Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

Checked:

Drawing Scale (UNO):

WIDTHxHEIGHT

Tel:   01767 676400
Fax:   01767 676444
E-mail: sales@potton.co.uk
Web:   www.potton.co.uk

C
Job Number:

15-114
Drawing Number:

Drawing Title:

Site Address:

Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road
Bix, Oxfordshire
RG9 6BY

Client:

Mr N Randall

Date:

04.12.15

Drawn:Rev:

.

Description:

Initial 'Potton' version of 'Langrick' drawings including
requested amendments.

.

Suggested position of boiler and flue, actual position
not determined by Potton. To be positioned in
accordance with Part 'J' of the Approved Building
Regulations Documents.

Bespoke 4 Bed Dwelling
Property Type:

0 1 2 3 4 5

SVP

ASHP

Revision:

E

B
O

I
L

E
R

B

F

GD

GF

Key.

Suggested position of soil vent pipe, actual position
not determined by Potton.

Entrance door to be mobility compliant.

Size denotes in millimetres the structural opening size
in the timber frame for the windows or door.

Possible position of air source heat pump if required.

Ground floor ceilings and all load bearing walls to
achieve min. half hour fire resistance.

Protected stairway from 30min. fire resisting
construction. Soffit to understairs cupboard to achieve
30min. fire resistance.

Garage ceiling to have half hour fire lining consisting
of 2 layers of 12.5mm plasterboard with all joinst
staggered, tapped and filled.

WC to be vented by mechanical extract fan ducted to
outside air, capable of an extract rate of 6 litres per
second with a 15 minute over-run and linked to the
light switch.

Guarding height to balcony to be 1100mm tall
construction to prevent 100mm sphere passing
through balusters and such that children may not
readily climb over (not by Potton).

Half hour fire door.

Garage door and frame no supplied by Potton. Fixing
detail above frame by client.

Half hour self closing flush fire door.

GC

P

kdb

LW Light-well

Jan 16A Various Amendments as requested .kdb

F* Glazed half hour fire door not available from Potton

15.01.16B Utility parapet wall removed, Bed 4 dormer widened. .kdb

25.02.16C Plinth height reduced in some areas, side lights to east
elevation French doors modified. .MW

2

First Floor Plans

1:100@A3
FIRST FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR INTERNAL AREA: 127.21m²

FIRST FLOOR INTERNAL PERIMETER: 59.21m

P
age 110



Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd
Eltisley Road,
Great Gransden,
Beds, SG19 3AR

This document is the copyright of Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd, and is made available on

the express condition that it shall not be used in connection with the erection of any building

or the production of any components for such a building unless the building to be erected or

the components are supplied by Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

© Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd.

Checked:

Drawing Scale (UNO):

WIDTHxHEIGHT

Tel:   01767 676400
Fax:   01767 676444
E-mail: sales@potton.co.uk
Web:   www.potton.co.uk

C
Job Number:

15-114
Drawing Number:

Drawing Title:

Site Address:

Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road
Bix, Oxfordshire
RG9 6BY

Client:

Mr N Randall

Date:

04.12.15

Drawn:Rev:

.

Description:

Initial 'Potton' version of 'Langrick' drawings including
requested amendments.

.

Suggested position of boiler and flue, actual position
not determined by Potton. To be positioned in
accordance with Part 'J' of the Approved Building
Regulations Documents.

Bespoke 4 Bed Dwelling
Property Type:

0 1 2 3 4 5

SVP

ASHP

Revision:

E

B
O

I
L

E
R

B

F

GD

GF

Key.

Suggested position of soil vent pipe, actual position
not determined by Potton.

Entrance door to be mobility compliant.

Size denotes in millimetres the structural opening size
in the timber frame for the windows or door.

Possible position of air source heat pump if required.

Ground floor ceilings and all load bearing walls to
achieve min. half hour fire resistance.

Protected stairway from 30min. fire resisting
construction. Soffit to understairs cupboard to achieve
30min. fire resistance.

Garage ceiling to have half hour fire lining consisting
of 2 layers of 12.5mm plasterboard with all joinst
staggered, tapped and filled.

WC to be vented by mechanical extract fan ducted to
outside air, capable of an extract rate of 6 litres per
second with a 15 minute over-run and linked to the
light switch.

Guarding height to balcony to be 1100mm tall
construction to prevent 100mm sphere passing
through balusters and such that children may not
readily climb over (not by Potton).

Half hour fire door.

Garage door and frame no supplied by Potton. Fixing
detail above frame by client.

Half hour self closing flush fire door.

GC

P

kdb

LW Light-well

Jan 16A Various Amendments as requested .kdb

F* Glazed half hour fire door not available from Potton

15.01.16B Utility parapet wall removed, Bed 4 dormer widened. .kdb

25.02.16C Plinth height reduced in some areas, side lights to east
elevation French doors modified. .MW

4

Elevation #2

1:100@A3

NORTH ELEVATION (Scale 1:100)

WEST ELEVATION (Scale 1:100)

P
age 111



Appendix D

P
age 112



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

APPLICATION NO. P17/S0201/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE Full application
REGISTERED 18.1.2017
PARISH Stoke Row
WARD MEMBERS Charles Bailey and David Nimmo-Smith
APPLICANT Mrs Lucy Ogston
SITE Land north of Clayhill Wood, Stoke Row
PROPOSAL A. Application for change of use of agricultural land 

to equestrian use. B. Application to replace the 
existing stables and storage building with two 
permanent buildings: i) American barn for stabling 
horses; ii) Secure storage barn for hay, bedding and 
agricultural machinery (position of storage barn 
revised to increase separation from ancient 
woodland as shown on amended site plan received 
28th February 2017).

AMENDMENTS None
OFFICER Paul Lucas

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted. This report explains how 

officers have reached that conclusion. The application is referred to the planning 
committee, because the site area exceeds 2 hectares.

1.2 The application site is shown at Appendix A. The land holding comprises of 3.98 
hectares of grassland (subject to this application) and 3.62 hectares of woodland. The 
site is accessed of the main highway by an existing track. There are two wooden 
buildings on site comprising two stables, a storage barn and lockable tack room. Each 
building measures 7.5m x 4.3m providing a total floor area of 64.5m². These buildings 
were erected by the applicant in 2006. The applicant has used the grassland area 
(3.98 hectares) since 2001 for her own private equestrian use. The applicant currently 
has six horses, of which five are on site and one is out on loan. The grassland area is 
divided into six paddocks for rotational grazing by the horses, with the horses fed 
supplementary hay during the winter months. The Applicant owns a range of 
agricultural machinery including two tractors, two sets of harrows, fertiliser spreader, 
roller and topper used for grassland maintenance. In addition, the Applicant has a 7.5 
tonne horse box, and an Ivor Williams trailer and a quad bike used for transport. The 
agricultural machinery is stored outside. The Applicant also has a small egg laying 
poultry flock on the site. The site lies within the Chilterns AONB.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the change of use of the land from 

agricultural to equestrian and the erection of an ‘American’ barn to stable her horses. 
The barn would measure 18.0m x 10.8m with a height to eaves of 2.3m and height to 
ridge of 4m. The barn contains six stables, tack room, feed store and rug room. In 
addition, the applicant proposes to erect a storage barn for the secure storage of
agricultural machinery, purchased hay and bedding. The building would be a single 
span steel-framed structure measuring 12m x 12m with a height to eaves of 4.3m and
a height to ridge of 5.9m. The existing buildings would be removed. Change of use is 
not proposed for the applicant’s woodland area (3.62 hectares). The application was 
amended to move the storage building further from the adjacent Ancient Woodland.

Page 113

Agenda Item 14

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S0201/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

2.2 The current plans for the application can be found at Appendix B. Other supporting 
documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website: 
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF
=P17/S0201/FUL

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Stoke Row Parish Council - No strong views

Countryside Officer (South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse) - No objection
Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objection subject to 
conditons
Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council) - No objection to amended layout
Neighbours – No representations received

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 None directly relevant.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy policies

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSQ3  -  Design
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;

C8 – Maintain and enhance biodiversity
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
EP2  -  Adverse affect by noise or vibration
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
R10  -  Proposals involving the keeping of horses
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016
South Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment – Character Area 3

5.3 National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance
The policies within the SOCS and the SOLP 2011 of relevance to this application are 
considered to be in general conformity with the provisions of the NPPF and therefore 
this application can be determined against the relevant policies above.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The planning issues that are relevant to this application are whether:

 There would be any adverse impact on the landscape; and
 The amenities of the area would not be damaged in terms of traffic, excessive 

bridleway use, noise, smell or other disturbance.

Page 114

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P17/S0201/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P17/S0201/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

6.2
Visual Impact
Criterion (i) of Policy R10 of the SOLP 2011 explains that the erection of buildings 
associated with the keeping of horses should not have a detrimental effect on the 
character and appearance of the area and the landscape. Policy CSEN1 of the SOCS 
explains that high priority will be given to conservation and enhancement of AONBs 
and planning decisions will have regard to their setting. The grassland area has been 
used for the Applicant’s own horses since 2001 and they have been attended to by the 
applicant and her family on a daily basis. The Equine Industry Welfare Guidelines for 
Horses, Ponies and Donkeys (Third Edition) recommends that horses require a 
minimum of 0.4 hectare per animal where no supplementary feed is being provided and 
more if the land is used for exercise and/or hay production. The applicant purchases 
hay and hard feed for her horses, does not make any hay on the grassland area, but 
does use the grassland to exercise her horses as well as local bridleways. The site is 
relatively secluded from public views due to being surrounded by Ancient Woodland. 

6.3 The Council’s Forestry Officer is satisfied that the buildings would not compromise the 
woodland and consequently they would be well screened on the lower part of the 
sloping site. The design of the buildings is considered to be fit for purpose and the 
materials appropriate for these type of structures. It is clear therefore that the 
applicant’s use of the land for her horses is not intensive. The proposal for the change 
of use from agriculture to equestrian use would not be visually intrusive or damage the 
appearance and character of the area or landscape in accordance with the above 
policies.

6.4
Amenity & Traffic Impact
Criterion (iii) of Policy R10 of the SOLP 2011 states that the amenities of the area in 
terms of traffic, excessive bridleway use, noise, smell or other disturbance should not 
be adversely affected. There are no immediately adjoining residential properties that 
might suffer from noise or smells. The Highway Liaison Officer is satisfied that 
acceptable visibility can be maintained at the access point through a planning condition. 
The level of activity associated with stables of this scale would be unlikely to result in 
any significant intensification of transport activity at the site or have a significant 
adverse impact on the highway network. A planning condition is necessary to require 
the keeping of horses to remain for recreational purposes for the landowner to prevent 
any intensification into a commercial use, which could give rise to an unacceptable 
increase in vehicular movements and general activity. Consequently, the above 
criterion would be satisfied.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The proposed development complies with the relevant policies of the Development 

Plan, Supplementary Planning Guidance and government guidance. The development 
would not materially harm the character and appearance of the Chilterns AONB 
landscape and there would be no adverse effect on residential amenity, highway safety 
or the use of the surrounding bridleway network.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to proceed in accordance with approved plans.
3. Materials to be used as set out on the application forms.
4. Vision splay protection retained free of obstructions above 0.9 metres in 

height.
5. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained as shown on approved plans.
6. Tree protection measures to be agreed prior to commencement of 

Page 115



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 29 March 2017

development.
7. Private use of land, barn and storage building – no commercial use.

Author:         Paul Lucas
Email:           Planning@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone:  01235 422600

Page 116

mailto:Planning@southandvale.gov.uk


Printed on 20/01/2017 12:06:31
   for BCP

This map is reproduced from Ordance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings
South Oxfordshire District Council / 100018668 / 2017

Reference:P17/S0201/FUL

Appendix A

Page 117

Agenda Item 14P17/S0201/FUL



Threelandboard Wood

Binksholme

Ponds

159.7m

House

Carpenters

Dogmore

Clayhill House

Cottage

Ponds

1:2500

100m500 200m

Appendix B

P
age 118



F:\RAC\banner colour.jpg

Existing timber

buildings to be demolished.

PROPOSED

AMERICAN

BARN

PROPOSED

STORAGE

BUILDING

Permitted

access

Owned

access

0 10 20

1:500

30 40 50m

P
age 119



0 1 2 3 4 5 10m6 7 8 9

1:100

P
age 120



FLOOR PLAN

Roller shutter door Roller shutter door

STORAGE BUILDING FOR

AGRICULTUAL MACHINERY

0 1 2 3 4 5 10m6 7 8 9

1:100

P
age 121



F:\RAC\banner colour.jpg

PROPOSED

AMERICAN

BARN

PROPOSED

STORAGE

BUILDING

Rigid HGV turning area

Parking area

0 10 20

1:500

30 40 50m

P
age 122



F:\RAC\banner colour.jpg

Binksholme

House

Carpenters

PROPOSED

AMERICAN

BARN

PROPOSED

STORAGE

Y

 

=

 

4

3

0

7

9

Y

 

=

 

6

0

6

0

2

X

 

=

 

2

4

0

0

0 10 20

1:500

30 40 50m

P
age 123



0 1 2 3 4 5 10m6 7 8 9

1:100

P
age 124


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes
	South planning minutes - 13 March 2017
	Minutes


	8 P16/S3608/O - Land to the East of Benson Lane, Crowmarsh Gifford
	P16/S3608/O - Land to the East of Benson Lane, Crowmarsh Gifford - Appendices
	Appendix A Location Plan
	Appendix B Parameters Plan drwgno 2079-32-06B
	Appendix C Illustrative Masterplan
	Appendix D TA Benson Lane Access
	Appendix E SODC Landscape Capacity Study May 2014 


	9 P16/S3709/FUL - Shakespeare House, Clapcot Way, Wallingford
	P16/S3709/FUL - Shakespeare House, Clapcot Way, Wallingford, OX10 8HS - Appendices
	1 Appendix 1
	2 Block Plan_dwgno. P02
	3 Elevations_existing-drwgno. 15879-MBS
	4 Floor Plan_Elevations_Plots1-5_drwgno. P03B
	5 Floor Plan_Elevations_Plot 6-10_drwgno. P04B
	6 Elevation_site_drwgno. P05


	10 P16/S3609/O - Land to the south of A4130, Didcot
	P16/S3609/O - Land to the South of A4130, Didcot - Appendices
	Appendix 1 Site Location Plan
	Appendix 2 Development Framework Plan
	Appendix 3A
	Sheets and Views
	1.1


	Appendix 3B
	Sheets and Views
	1.1




	11 P16/S3778/O - Land to the west of Ridgeways, New Road, Lower Shiplake
	P16/S3778/O - Land to the west of Ridgeways, New Road, Lower Shiplake, RG9 3LA - Appendices
	GIS Print
	Illustrative Layout drwgno 16-005-02 B


	12 P16/S3471/FUL - Land at 67 Lower Icknield Way, Chinnor
	P16/S3471/FUL - Land at 67 Lower Icknield Way, Chinnor, OX39 4EA - Appendices
	A GIS Print
	B1 Site and Location Plan drwgno  013c
	B2 Floor Plans Proposed Plot 1a drwgno 08a
	B3 Floor Plans Proposed Plot 1b drwgno 10a
	B4 Elevations Proposed Plot 1a drwgno 09a
	B5 Elevations Proposed Plot 1b drawing 11b
	C Composite drwgno 13b
	D Site Location & Block Plan drwgno 1524 02a
	D1 Proposed Site Plan drwgno 2191-1000


	13 P16/S3555/FUL - Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road
	P16/S3555/FUL - Leys Stable Cottage, Old Bix Road, RG9 6BY - Appendices
	A GIS Print
	B Elevation Proposed S&E drwgno 15-114 3 rev d
	B1 Floor Plan First Proposed 15-114 2 rev d
	B2 Elevation Proposed N&W drwgno 415-114 4 rev d
	C SUPERSEDED Elevation Proposed S&E drwgno 15 -114 - 3 Rev C
	C1 SUPERSEDED Floor Plan First Proposed drwgno 15-114 -2 Rev C
	C2 SUPERSEDED Elevation Proposed N&W drwgno 15-114- 4 Rev C
	D Dwg 357 03C Elevations and Floor Plans March 2015 Reduced pitch (3)


	14 P17/S0201/FUL - Land north of Clayhill Wood, Stoke Row
	P17/S0201/FUL - Land north of Clayhill Wood, Stoke Row - Appendices
	A GIS Extract. 1pdf
	B Location Plan_drwgno. 7298.01
	B1 Block Plan_drwgno. 7298.02A
	B2 Elevation Plans_drwgno. 7298.04
	B3 Floor Plan_proposed_drwgno. 7298.03
	B4 7298.07 Turning and Parking
	B5 7298.06 Visibility Splays
	Composite_proposed_drwgno. 7298_05





